



SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2020

DARE TOGETHER



CONTENTS

OVERVIEW

- 1 A MESSAGE FROM OUR CHIEF **EXECUTIVE OFFICER**
- **2** OUR BUSINESS AT A GLANCE
- **3** WHERE WE OPERATE
- IN CONVERSATION WITH OUR OPERATING 4 COMPANIES' CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
- 6 A MESSAGE FROM OUR CHIEF SUSTAINABILITY OFFICER
- **7** 2020 HIGHLIGHTS

DARE TODAY, CHANGE TOMORROW

- 8 OUR SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY
- **10** SUSTAINABILITY IN ACTION
- 12 ALIGNING WITH THE UNITED NATIONS SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS

TRANSFORMING LIVES

- **15** OUR PROGRESS
- **18** SPOTLIGHT ON: EMBEDDING RESPONSIBLE PROCUREMENT ACROSS THE BUSINESS

RETHINKING RESOURCES

- **21** OUR PROGRESS
- **26** SPOTLIGHT ON: CREATING OUR CIRCULAR ECONOMY

EMPOWERING OUR PEOPLE

- **29** OUR PROGRESS
- **32** SPOTLIGHT ON: SUPPORTING MAFERS THROUGH CHALLENGING TIMES

GOVERNANCE

- **34** SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE
- 35 RESPONDING TO THE TASK FORCE ON CLIMATE-RELATED FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES

LOOKING TO THE FUTURE

39 THE NEXT STEPS OF OUR SUSTAINABILITY JOURNEY

PERFORMANCE

- **40** INDEPENDENT ASSURANCE STATEMENT
- 41 2020 TARGETS ASSESSMENT

ANNEX

- **49** UNITED NATIONS SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS MAPPING
- 54 UN GLOBAL COMPACT COMMUNICATION **ON PROGRESS**
- **56** GLOBAL REPORTING INITIATIVE CONTENT INDEX

ABOUT US

At Majid Al Futtaim, we strive to create great moments for everyone, everyday. Founded in 1992, Majid Al Futtaim is the leading shopping mall, communities, retail and leisure pioneer across the Middle East, Africa and Asia. A remarkable business success story, Majid Al Futtaim started from one man's vision to transform the face of shopping, entertainment and leisure. It has since grown into one of the United Arab Emirates' (UAE's) most respected and successful businesses spanning 17 international markets, employing more than 43,000 people, and maintaining the highest credit rating (BBB) among privately-held corporates in the region.

Our brand is a legacy that represents our founder's heritage, culture and vision for a future where families, friends and communities connect, create and experience those great moments, everyday. Representing our past, present and future, the Majid Al Futtaim brand is the glue that holds the magic and moments together.

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This report covers the period from 1 January to 31 December 2020. It demonstrates our actions to deliver an ambitious sustainability vision to employees, tenants, operators, customers and suppliers, to regional and global peers, communities, NGOs, governments and global investors. We have adopted internationally accepted best practice to measure and report our sustainability activities and therefore benchmark our performance with reference to the GRI Standards and Communication on Progress to the Ten Principles of the United Nations Global Compact, which can be found on page 56 and 54 of this report.

This report includes all the operations and assets in our portfolio, including four office buildings, one of which is our Headquarters. Our UAE property portfolio includes Matajer Malls, a neighbourhood retail centre concept by Sharjah Holding, and Al Zahia, Sharjah's first gated mixed-use community; both are joint ventures with the government of Sharjah. This excludes other joint venture projects where we did not have full operational control or responsibility for 100% of the floor area in 2020. According to the new 2021 business restructure, LEC & Lifestyle is referred to in place of the Ventures Operating Company.

The absolute environmental data in this report covers 100% of the floor area* of the assets over which we have operational control, and which were operational at any point in 2020. In addition, the environmental impacts of all Majid Al Futtaim's major construction projects underway during 2020 have also been included in the annex to the report. In order to increase transparency and ensure accuracy of disclosed information, we have appointed a third-party auditor to provide independent assurance of our 2020 environmental data. This report includes assurance of our Majid Al Futtaim - Properties' Green Sukuk portfolio and by the end of 2021, our full portfolio will be assured. The scope of the assurance engagement as well as the Assurance Statement can be found on page 40. Our Green Sukuk 2020 report can be found here.

* Floor area is measured by Gross Internal Area for the majority of assets, but Common Parts Area is used for Malls. No floor area has been included in the Company total for the Al Zahia gated mixed-use community where Majid Al Futtaim – Properties is responsible for external common areas only



While the events of the past year presented exceptional challenges for our business, our people, our customers and our communities, they also raised a global consciousness that has driven a fundamental shift in the way we interact with the world around us. Our resilience, humility, empathy and determination has shown me the significant impact we can drive when we are unified by a common purpose and working towards a common goal.

At Majid Al Futtaim, MAFers consistently and persistently went the extra mile to help those in need, retraining and reskilling to be able to provide vital services, while looking at ways in which we could further support our customers and communities for the long-term. These fantastic efforts saw us achieve 97% of our annual sustainability targets last year.

Representative of our mindset of continuous improvement, over the last year we have increased the transparency of our reporting, including achievement against global benchmarks and initiatives, and enhancing our GRI disclosures.

For the first time, this year's report also showcases our contribution to the United Nations Global Compact Communication on Progress, providing a more holistic update on our progress, actions and initiatives to embed the UN's Sustainable Development Goals and supporting principles across our operations.

Looking ahead, now more than ever there is opportunity and means for every one of us to contribute to the best of our abilities in driving continued positive change. I am certain that continuing in this spirit of connectivity and collaboration for the long-term, will make great progress in addressing humankinds' greatest social, environmental and economic challenges.

ALAIN BEJJANI

Majid Al Futtaim

A MESSAGE FROM OUR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Our resilience, humility, empathy and determination whilst facing COVID-19 showed me what we are capable of when we prioritise collaboration and strength in the midst of a crisis.

Chief Executive Officer

OUR BUSINESS AT A GLANCE



Our growing shopping mall, communities, retail and leisure portfolio spans 17 countries across the Middle East, Africa and Asia.



MAJID AL FUTTAIM SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2020

WHERE WE **OPERATE**

IN CONVERSATION WITH OUR OPERATING COMPANIES' CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

As our business continues to experience significant growth, we must evolve to ensure we remain lean, agile, and prepared for the challenges and opportunities ahead. In early 2021, our Ventures Operating Company was replaced by two new Operating Companies: Leisure, Entertainment and Cinemas (LEC) and Lifestyle. These two businesses have grown substantially in scale to become significant contributors to the company's overall performance. Below, our Operating Companies' CEOs share their perspectives on notable moments in a globally challenging year.



PROPERTIES

The local and regional lockdowns and government mandated closures of our assets had an undeniable impact on our business. Our proactive decision to provide support to our tenants through rent relief mechanisms demonstrated our commitment to building long-term partnerships. Yet, our focus on improving the performance of our assets remained strong and we became the first hotel portfolio in the world to be LEED Platinum certified.

Ahmed Galal Ismail Chief Executive Officer Majid Al Futtaim – Properties

LEISURE, ENTERTAINMENT AND CINEMAS

From prioritising the wellness of our employees to ensuring the safety of our visitors, the pandemic has unveiled our ability to act effectively in a crisis and continue tackling society's greatest challenges like the climate crisis. One of my favourite highlights was hosting the region's first carbonneutral drive-in cinema screening. Our partnership with Dubai Carbon Centre of Excellence will ensure all future screenings held at the VOX Cinemas' Drive-In have a carbon neutral footprint. This is a significant step in influencing sustainable behaviours not just for our customers but across the region too.

Cameron Mitchell

Chief Executive Officer Majid Al Futtaim – Leisure, Entertainment & Cinemas



LIFESTYLE

Delivering a first-class customer experience is the very essence of the Majid Al Futtaim – Lifestyle business. An exciting and invaluable addition to our portfolio in 2020 is the THAT app, a curated multi-brand mobile app offering unique, niche and sustainable edits which has expanded our digital footprint and added a new dimension to our customers' shopping experience. Coupled with the immense success of our THAT pop-up store, I'm confident that we can keep evolving with the lives of our customers.

Fahed Ghanim Chief Executive Officer Majid Al Futtaim – Lifestyle



RETAIL

The retail business has been at the heart of Majid Al Futtaim's response to the pandemic, providing vital products and services to our communities. At the same time, the company leveraged the opportunity to accelerate its digital offering and strengthen its fulfilment and delivery capabilities, with the opening of new fulfilment centres. Despite the pandemic, we expanded our operations and opened our first Carrefour store in Uzbekistan. I am inspired by our agility to react guickly when faced with unprecedented demand, commitment to our people and ability to deploy over 1,000 MAFers to be upskilled and explore new experiences.

Hani Weiss Chief Executive Officer Majid Al Futtaim – Retail

. . .



A MESSAGE FROM OUR **CHIEF SUSTAINABILITY OFFICER**



Despite the challenges of 2020, we continue to scale up on our Net Positive efforts and embed climate-related risk management to further enhance our business resilience.

seen our world change beyond our imagination. We have lost loved ones. had our movement restricted, seen vast changes in the workplace landscape and witnessed the struggles that many have faced as a result. However, even in all the frustration, upset and emotional turmoil that the pandemic thrust upon us, we have also seen hope of a new, better world.

The past 12 months have

We have seen businesses and communities come together to support each other. We have seen a love for our natural landscape grow exponentially. We have seen the climate crisis movement take centre stage and we have seen what is truly possible when governments, business, academics and citizens collaborate.

Receiving my vaccine against COVID-19 proved exactly how important these collaborations are, with results which impact and benefit us all. Although the roll-out of vaccines around the world will take time, there is now light at the end of the tunnel. It is time for us all to push forward our ambitions to support the better, greener world we want to see.

Even though the past 12 months have been tough, I'm proud of our progress in 2020: having achieved 97% of our Transforming Lives annual commitments, 96% of our Rethinking Resources targets, and 100% for Empowering our People. Our recently launched circular economy strategy, Unlocking Value, will be pivotal in changing and futureproofing how we operate and how we do business. As we report in line with the best practice recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) for the first time, we continue to scale up on our Net Positive efforts and embed climaterelated risk management to further enhance our business resilience.

The wellbeing of our people remains front and centre for our business and we are keen to continue delivering more positive social impact to our communities, leveraging our local partnerships and strengthening our local supply chains.

As we look ahead to the future, I believe that 2021 will bring many new conversations, collaborations and changes within the environmental space. COP26 will bring together businesses and governments around the world to discuss the most pressing and life altering issues of our time. I am optimistic that the coming year will reflect breakthrough progress on today's environmental crises and increased commitment will lead to tangible impact, beyond what is necessary, across all sectors and countries.

If the world's response to the global pandemic has taught me anything, it is that we really can achieve whatever we put our minds to when we work together. I hope that this way of working is now here to stay, and as we look to tackle the climate crisis, caring for each other and collaborating together, has never been more vital for our success.

IBRAHIM AL-ZU'BI

Chief Sustainability Officer Majid Al Futtaim





2020 H

HOTEL PORTFOLIO TO RECEIVE LEED PLATINUM CERTIFICATION

> 9.2% REDUCTION IN CO.,e EMISSIONS ACROSS THE COMPANY

17.5% REDUCTION IN WATER USAGE ACROSS THE COMPANY

> LAUNCHED UNLOCKING VALUE, OUR CIRCULAR ECONOMY STRATEGY

DARE TODAY, CHANGE TOMORROW — OUR SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY

2020 made clear the intrinsic link between humans and nature, and our reliance on a thriving planet, diverse skillsets and partnerships in a crisis.

With over 43,000 employees and a wide geographical reach, we have always recognised the important role we play alongside governments, NGOs and other businesses in the fight to tackle climate change and the race to zero emissions.

Although the world we are living in has dramatically changed, Majid Al Futtaim's sustainability ambitions remain at the centre of our activities as we continue to drive forward the sustainability agenda alongside other global and regional leaders.

Our sustainability strategy, *Dare Today, Change Tomorrow*, aligned with 14 of the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs), is constantly evolving. This is to ensure that we can respond to the current needs and issues that matter most to our stakeholders, addressing the social and environmental priorities of governments, customers, supply chains, investors and our people. You can read more about how we contribute to our material SDGs on a goal and target level on page 49.

Our three focus areas: Transforming Lives, Rethinking Resources and Empowering Our People allow us to take a holistic view across our business, helping to support our communities, the environment and our people. People are at the heart of what we do and the driver behind each of the three focus areas. Whether it is our employees creating new and innovative initiatives within the business, local farmers working to reach new standards and improve sustainable farming or our shoppers adopting sustainable practices due to enhanced environmental awareness, together we are driving positive and lasting change in our region.

2020 has been a unique year. We have seen our business priorities shifting and adapting to the needs of our customers and employees and the challenges they are facing at a rapid rate. Our sustainability strategy has still been a top priority for the business, yet we were not immune to the challenges created almost overnight by the pandemic, with numerous initiatives being temporarily put on hold due to a shift in priorities. Despite the challenges, we continued to dare. The launch of our circular economy strategy, which looks to tackle waste within the business and move towards a more circular business model by 2030 was a key 2020 milestone. Supporting our people during this period of turmoil, ensuring that they were safe, through job upskilling and remote working alongside providing sustainability training to many of our business units was our primary focus. Finally, over the past year, we have worked hard to create spaces where our communities feel safe and are able to spend time with loved ones. Ensuring their wellbeing and safety is a priority, with all of our teams going above and beyond to enable our malls and shops to remain open.

As we emerge out of the pandemic, we will need to ramp up our efforts, working collaboratively to achieve our 2022 Sustainable Business Commitments and Net Positive ambition.

OUR APPROACH TO MATERIALITY

Our strategy aims to reflect the world we live in and our material issues underpin our overall focus. All of our material issues were identified as important to both Majid Al Futtaim and our stakeholders. The issues that were identified as most important form the foundation of our sustainability strategy and Sustainable Business Commitments, guiding our investments and resources to where we can generate tangible impact. As we move forward and evolve, so do our material issues. To ensure we are addressing the right issues for our stakeholders, we will undertake a materiality review in 2021. This exercise will set out to engage our stakeholders and understand what is happening in the Middle Eastern, African and Asian markets on a wide range of issues. The outcomes of the materiality review will help us identify what is important to us as a business, ensure we meet our employees' expectations and cater to the needs of our communities and investors, make sure we uphold the sustainability benchmark for the region, and finally ensure we go above and beyond compliance to drive sustainability across the Middle East, Africa and Asia.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Engaging with our stakeholders is vital for the success of our business whether that be our developments, or our assets in operation. We are committed to developing long-term relationships with all our stakeholders, and pursuing mutually beneficial goals as we work to become a sustainability pioneer in the Middle East, Africa and Asia with the hope to help transform the economic and social development of the regions.





Stakeholder group	Method of communication	Key topics
MAJID AL FUTTAIM EMPLOYEES	Intranet, Focus groups, Forums, Newsletters, Unstaffed displays, Staffed displays, Interviews, Training, Emails, Workplace (Facebook for work)	More sustainability awareness and training Wellness, air quality improvement Frequent updates by the leadership
TENANTS	Leaflets/brochures, Newsletters, Site visits, Surveys and questionnaires, Social media, Focus groups, Forums, Community Advisory Committee, Events	Additional support Branding Unit specific questions Tenancies and letting Security
CUSTOMERS	Public meetings, Advertising, Press in local/national media, Video, Telephone lines, Exhibitions and events, Surveys and questionnaires, Deliberative opinion polls, Social media	Providing reusable bag option Having organic section in Carrefour Advancing and improving our digitalisation
SUPPLIERS	Leaflets/brochures, Press in local/national media, Newsletters, Site visits, Surveys and questionnaires, Focus groups, Forums, Training	Providing training on Majid Al Futtaim's sustainability strategy Helping the supply chain to upskill their employees
CONTRACTORS	Leaflets/brochures, Newsletters, Site visits, Surveys and questionnaires, Focus groups, Forums, Community Advisory Committee, Events	Providing training on Majid Al Futtaim's sustainability strategy Helping contractors to upskill their employees
REGIONAL AND GLOBAL PEERS	Newsletters, Press in local/national media, Social media, Video, Forums	Best practice and knowledge sharing
	Public meetings, Advertising, Press in local/national media, Video, Telephone lines, Exhibitions and events, Surveys and questionnaires, Deliberative opinion polls, Interviews, Forums, Internet forums, Community Advisory Committee, Events, Sustainability Awareness events, Maintenance upgrades, Infrastructure improvements	More CCTV in the community Shared pool and gym Grocery shop or pop ups
NGOS	Public meetings, Advertising, Press in local/national media, Video, Telephone lines, Exhibitions and events, Surveys and questionnaires, Interviews, Forums, Online and face-to-face workshops, Focus groups	How to form partnerships Ways that Majid Al Futtaim can support
CHARITIES	Public meetings, Advertising, Press in local/national media, Video, Telephone lines, Exhibitions and events, Surveys and questionnaires, Interviews, Forums, Internet forums, Online and face-to-face workshops, Focus groups	How to form partnerships Ways that Majid Al Futtaim can support
GOVERNMENTS	Visioning, Community Advisory Committee, Forums, Public meetings, Focus groups, Workshops, Local and national media	Community initiatives Role in master planning

SUSTAINABILITY **IN ACTION**

Guided by our sustainability strategy, Tilal Al Ghaf reflects our commitment to the best socio-economic and environmental practices as well as the efficient use of resources while ensuring cost to value.

TILAL AL GHAF

Tilal Al Ghaf is Majid Al Futtaim's flagship mixed-use community in Dubai. It was designed with sustainability at the forefront; implementing the best environmental practices available; circular economy principles; and aligns with our sustainability targets and Net Positive ambition. By incorporating large arrays of photovoltaic solar panels, the Tilal Al Ghaf Sales and Experience Centre is Majid Al Futtaim's first Net Positive building and one of the first in the region. For its achievements, the Sales and Experience Centre was awarded 2019 Zero Energy Building of the Year at the MENA Green Building Awards.

Spanning over three million square metres, the community provides walkable neighbourhoods featuring high-quality villas, townhouses and apartments. These are connected by pathways, natural, open spaces and parks, complemented by vibrant retail, dining, leisure and cultural options.

The community has been developed to become a global benchmark and will be the first BREEAM certified community in Dubai. With a special focus on supporting Dubai's strategic objectives in Health, Wellbeing, Happiness, Sustainability and Smart Cities, it is a testament to Majid Al Futtaim's sustainability ambition. The project will result in significant economic and employment benefits to the local area and Dubai, generating more than 30,000 job opportunities. With over 11km of cycle trails and 18km of pedestrian paths, the development will promote sustainable travel and wellbeing, improving health and reducing congestion, energy consumption and pollution.

20,000+ RESIDENTS

THE SALES AND EXPERIENCE CENTRE HOLDS A **BREEAM EXCELLENT** CERTIFICATION

20% REGIONALLY SOURCED MATERIAL IN CONSTRUCTION





10

ALIGNING WITH THE UNITED NATIONS SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS

Our sustainability strategy is aligned with the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs), supporting our aspirations to deliver a significant impact through our operations and engagement with our stakeholders.

OUR SUSTAINABLE BUSINESS COMMITMENTS

In 2021, we undertook a comprehensive mapping exercise to determine how our strategy directly contributes to the targets of the SDGs. You can find the targets we are aligned to, along with the ways in which we support them, on page 49 of this report.

DARE TODAY CHANGE TOMORROW A way of life for a positive future

SDG 2: Zero hunger

We strive to improve the environmental performance of food production systems and work with local small farmers to enhance their understanding of and performance against our high standards. Our urban farm produces food on site for our residents at a reduced environmental cost and improves overall food security for the community.



ZERO HUNGER

SDG 3: Good health and well-being

We provide healthy workplaces where our people can thrive. Employee wellbeing continues to be our priority, with our first virtual Wellness Week providing awareness of common health problems, encouraging early detection and treatment, as well as tools and guidance on all aspects of wellness to employees from the comfort of their home.

SDG 4: Quality education

QUALITY

We work to increase access to quality education amongst our people and across our communities. Our training centres upskill our people and support local communities by providing inclusive access to employment skills. Our partnerships with various organisations, including the National Coalition Against Hunger and Malnutrition (NAJMAH), provide education to children and employment skills to vulnerable groups.



6 CLEAN WATER

Q

SDG 5: Gender equality

We continue to empower women across our business. Our recently launched Diversity and Inclusion Policy formalises our commitment to equality in both our workplaces and communities.

SDG 6: Clean water and sanitation

We have pledged to become Net Positive in water by 2040. We continue to research and implement water efficiency measures across our operations, and have developed a water offsetting strategy to address residual water consumption.



SDG 7: Affordable and clean energy

We continue to invest in the clean energy transition by expanding our own renewable energy generation and introducing power purchasing agreements. Through partnerships like 20by2020, we also invest in providing renewable, reliable, and affordable energy access to off-grid communities' critical infrastructure.

TRANSFORMING LIVES

RETHINKING RESOURCES

EMPOWERING OUR PEOPLE

SDG 10: Reduced inequalities

and policies.

such as waste.

SDG 13: Climate action

SDG 15: Life on land



TRANSFORMING LIVES

WE DARE TO

and sustainable way of life

OUR TRANSFORMING

LIVES SUSTAINABLE Support our

BUSINESS COMMITMENTS:

OUR ALIGNMENT

TO THE SDGS:



LOCAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

communities

development.

Support the development of skills by increasing our and entrepreneurship contribution to local in line with local economies, with the needs through objective of helping enterprise hubs. to reach prosperity and promote economic

LOCAL ECONOMIC

DEVELOPMENT



CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE

Work to enrich our customers' experiences through sustainability across our business.



DISRUPTIVE TECHNOLOGY

Invest in our employees' innovative ideas by having an Innovation Centre of Excellence to drive improvements in sustainability performance across Majid Al Futtaim and our supply chain.

Communities are the beating heart of our business. From our internal support networks to the frontline workers and employees who've stepped up to help those in need, without whom, many of our services would have failed.

At Majid Al Futtaim, we recognise the significant contribution our communities have provided over the past year, and whom we have also had a social impact on. With over 178 million customers each year across 17 countries, we want to ensure that everyone can live happily, healthily, safely and sustainably, so that we can guarantee our developments help benefit the communities that we serve.

PROMOTING LOCAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

Products sourced sustainably, ethically and locally have seen growing demand over recent years, but the COVID-19 pandemic saw supply chains around the world struggle. With cross border trade disrupted and national lockdowns limiting the movement of goods or suspending them all together, local suppliers became a vital lifeline for many goods and services. This re-emphasised that businesses and communities' livelihoods are intrinsically linked and by helping local suppliers to thrive, they in turn support and enrich our communities and the local area.

Since the opening of our first Carrefour in 1995, today we are operating 350 stores across 17 countries which make up our retail business. We have worked hard to build strong relationships with our local suppliers and communities, supporting their products and services. As a result, we have numerous agreements in place committing us to purchase and market local agricultural and fisheries products in our retail stores and this year, our commitments have never been so important.

In Iraq, local farmers were not able to send their products to the south of the country, resulting in large amounts of food waste. Carrefour Iraq stepped up to help tackle the issue by heavily promoting local products such as tomatoes and other vegetables and broadcasting videos in all stores and on social media explaining how we support and buy locally.

44 -----

Working alongside Majid Al Futtaim came at a critical time when distribution channels were largely disrupted by COVID-19. I hope that through their expertise and resources, local farmers like me can continue to receive the support we need to improve our standards, ultimately enhancing our resilience and strengthening local economic development.

- ...

Salim AlMangi

Local farmer Local Farmer working with Majid Al Futtaim – Retail



OUR PROGRESS

We also increased our procurement of local products which resulted in a 7% sales growth in fresh food compared to the previous year.

To take our commitment to local farmers and suppliers even further, Carrefour UAE in collaboration with the UAE Ministry of Climate Change and Environment (MOCCAE), announced a new initiative to boost the availability of locally grown produce across stores. The programme aims to open new distribution channels for more than 6,000 small and medium-sized local farmers and ensure a sustainable supply of fresh fruit and vegetables across the country.

It is vital for us to work with farmers to educate them on the standards required for our stores. This enables us to source produce from small local communities whilst maintaining our high quality of goods. At Carrefour Egypt, in partnership with USAID's "Feed the Future" project, we launched a new initiative to support small farmers in Upper Egypt. The initiative's objective was to provide the proper technical guidance on produce required to meet our high standards, and in turn enable suppliers to continue working with Majid Al Futtaim in the future. As a result of the project, we help support the livelihoods of the farmers and their families and moving forward, we are investigating methods to help them reduce their water consumption, which will improve the resilience of their operations.

COMMUNITY OUTREACH

In the midst of the pandemic, the news of the Beirut port blast and the impact on the local communities and colleagues within the country was an extremely challenging time for our business and supply chain. MAFers across the company wanted to support those in the country during this difficult period.

Joining forces with Emirates Red Crescent, we launched "Ya Beirut" in the UAE, encouraging shoppers and visitors to Majid Al Futtaim shopping malls to support the people of Lebanon by gifting all-important donations. Donation boxes were installed in 15 of our shopping malls, with a total of 2,500 bags donated which included items such as toys, books, food and electronics.

Many of our Carrefour stores also ran fundraising campaigns to ensure vital funds could be utilised by the charities on the ground, with over 168,000 AED raised. Carrefour Egypt donated 10 tons of essential food and textile items via the Egyptian Red Crescent. Carrefour Lebanon in collaboration with the Lebanese army, donated 1,000 welfare packages and distributed them to underprivileged families who were affected in North Lebanon. Finally, the Lebanese Business Council in Kuwait partnered with the Red Crescent and Carrefour Kuwait to create the Food Boxes for Lebanon initiative, a food relief solution to combat the impending food shortages that the explosion caused.

DARE TODAY CHANGE TOMORROW

RETHINKING RESOURCES

EMPOWERING OUR PEOPLE

ANCE

LOOKING TO THE FUTURE

OUR PROGRESS

ADDITIONAL INFRASTRUCTURE

Additional infrastructure varies from region to region and can take many forms as it is tailored to the needs of those in the community and area that the project is based. The investment of additional infrastructure can, if done well, have a positive impact on those it serves, and also encourage further support of our business and projects.

Due to the pandemic, our ability to consult with local communities throughout 2020 was impacted; however, we are still committed to supporting and ensuring our communities have the facilities and infrastructure they need to thrive.

As a result of our work over the past two years to ensure we have clear processes in place to identify the right additional infrastructure for our projects and, thus, communities, the majority of our malls continue to benefit from our infrastructure development including flyovers and surrounding roads to ensure the comfort of the local community.

At Al Zahia, Sharjah's premier residential community destination, we have invested AED 45 million, providing a mosque, roads, an electric substation along with a greywater treatment plant that treats 90% of greywater from the local community. These installations don't just benefit the communities but also help us as we seek to achieve our Net Positive water ambition. Additionally, we created an urban farm at our Al Zahia community and plan to build a similar urban farm in Tilal Al Ghaf, our flagship mixed-use community in Dubai, in 2023. To read more about our Al Zahia urban farm, see page 23.

START UPS AND SMEs

We recognise the value that start-ups and small and mediumsized enterprises (SMEs) can create for our business through collaborations which can grow our services and solutions, and for our customers who can benefit from an enhanced customer experience. These partnerships are particularly important given the severe financial pressure that COVID-19 has placed on such businesses and entrepreneurs. We hope our efforts in this area provide relief to this vital sector which is considered the backbone of many economies where we are present.

In 2020, through our start-up incubator, we partnered with Workfam, a start-up which aims to embed a sense of belonging for employees leading to increased productivity and reduced recruitment costs. Through mentorship and guidance with Majid Al Futtaim's Sustainability and Analytics and Technology teams, MyWellness was launched on an internal application to provide wellness-related experiences to employees as well as their friends and families. Features include signing up to sponsored events, booking discounted experiences, joining sports clubs and the ability to invite colleagues to join the experiences. To date, the application has around 1,000 users in the UAE alone. In another example, we formed a partnership with Mr Usta, a leading after sale and home services start-up, who will provide customers at Carrefour, Crate & Barrel and Maisons du Monde with the option to access licensed, reliable and skilled professionals to complete after sale services. The partnership has provided vital services which customers have been particularly reliant on considering the advice to remain home amid the coronavirus pandemic in 2020.

PROVIDING LIGHT FOR COMMUNITIES' CRITICAL INFRASTRUCTURE

As a partner of the UAE's 20by2020 initiative which provides sustainability solutions and technologies to last-mile and offgrid communities, we funded two critical projects to help 6,500 people gain reliable and renewable access to energy through the installation of solar streetlights in Jordan and Egypt. In Jordan, solar streetlights were installed in and around a hospital which has been crucial for the country's COVID-19 response, improving site safety and reducing upkeep costs. In Egypt, lighting has been installed in Habisha village to improve the safety of the community, reduce traffic accidents and crime, and support social gatherings, children's education and longer operating hours for local businesses. As well as the invaluable benefits to the communities which they serve, the solar lights provide a reliable, low-cost and importantly clean source of energy, with the annual carbon savings estimated to be equal to the carbon emitted from 12 round-trip flights from Sydney, Australia to New York, USA.



4 EDUCATION 10 REDUCED 17 PARTNERSHIPS 17 FOR THE GOALS 17 FOR THE GOALS

Children are the leaders of our future and at Majid Al Futtaim, we are committed to supporting children through their education, particularly with the ongoing challenges caused

Majid Al Futtaim – Retail Corporate Head Office donated 38 old laptops and desktops to Al Wasl University in Dubai to help underprivileged students in their distance learning, whilst our Al Zahia community, in partnership with Sharjah Charity International, provided 450 new electronic learning tablets to families across the emirate. We didn't stop there, in association with Samusocial NGO, Carrefour Egypt launched the second phase of the Healthy Life for a Better Future Project by offering internships to 150 adolescents (above 16 years) in our stores, to help them engage proactively in society. In Qatar, our stores raised over 5 million AED for the Education Above All Foundation's "Together" project to support vulnerable children and learners and help them access quality education in the country, which so far has impacted over 2,000 students. Lastly, in partnership with UNICEF, three Carrefour stores in proceeds used to provide quality education opportunities to marginalised children.

back the essential bedtime story for young children, giving simple life advice through stories. To do this, we partnered with narrator Doha Khasawneh for a bedtime story on our Facebook page. The story was part of the "When I feel" book series, which acknowledges children's mental state, showing them how they can express and deal with sadness. We hope that the session, which has been viewed 45,000 times, helped children around the region learn new coping mechanisms and encouraged them to talk about their emotions as well.



SPOTLIGHT ON: EMBEDDING RESPONSIBLE **PROCUREMENT ACROSS** THE BUSINESS

At Majid Al Futtaim, we carry out significant expenditure on goods, services, works, and capital projects. That is why we place upmost importance on positively using our purchasing power to undertake sustainable decisions in line with our company's core values, vision, and commitment towards sustainable development while delivering long-term value for money.

Sustainable procurement offers our business and those within our supply chain the opportunity to not only ensure long term support from the communities which they are a part of, but also to help build back a better, more resilient and stronger world which can withstand possible future environmental and economic challenges.

We believe that Majid Al Futtaim and our supply chain can achieve a more sustainable approach to procurement which will have lasting benefits and cater for evolving consumer preferences. As our supply chain continues to grow in both size and complexity, we also recognise that the risk of disruptions or breaches by potential suppliers is only going to increase.

To help us mitigate our business risks and drive positive change within our supply chain, we launched our Responsible Procurement Policy in 2020. This policy sets out the principles of our approach, ensuring value for money, effective supply chain management and working in partnership to maintain all relevant legal, environmental, ethical, and health and safety standards.

The launch of our Responsible Procurement Policy will go a long way in embedding sustainability throughout our supply chain and guide the work we do to improve our suppliers' performance. It is a continuation of the previous year's work where we identified sustainable procurement categories, tender requirements and suppliers.

Sascha Claude Bender Head of Group Procurement Majid Al Futtaim – Global Solutions



WASTE POLICIES IN PLACE

For our tier 1, 2 and 3 suppliers, the minimum sustainability standards set out within the policy are essential and we aim to work hand in hand with our suppliers to ensure these standards are met.

To do this, over the past year we have conducted over 80 supply chain surveys across 14 countries to firstly understand the baseline level of sustainability initiatives and business policies currently held by suppliers. The survey's results have helped us identify areas in which we need to work with our suppliers to raise awareness and generate positive change. Accordingly, we delivered sustainable procurement training to all tier 1 suppliers for Majid Al Futtaim – Properties to embed understanding of the requirements in our new policy, and to provide appropriate techniques and resources to support improvements to their own supply chain procedures, in line with our responsible procurement principles. The training will be rolled out across the rest of our business in 2021.



OUR JOURNEY SO FAR

Launched research into the biggest sustainability issues present in our supply chain

2018

Assessed top spend suppliers' approach to responsible procurement



Launched Responsible Procurement Policy and engaged suppliers on performance improvements

Actively engage suppliers through upskilling, training and performance improvement tracking

2020

MAJID AL FUTTAIM SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2020

It is our goal that through these surveys, training and ongoing monitoring, we will be able to improve the supply chain standards in the Middle East and further afield, creating a positive effect on the local communities and the environment that we live in.

Our survey results so far have been positive. In Retail, we identified that 55% of our suppliers already have a policy which covers waste management and recycling, and 85% of suppliers who provide food products to the business have policies regarding food loss and waste. We also found that 49% of our suppliers source products locally and a further 20% will upon request, demonstrating that local sourcing is of great importance to the value chain.

These results demonstrate that we are on the right course, and although our supply chains still have a long way to go in embedding sustainability, we know that as we continue to engage and identify further solutions, our supply chain will also move towards a more sustainable way of working.

All tier 1 suppliers will meet our minimum sustainability requirements



DARE TODA CHANGE TOMORROV

RETHINKING RESOURCES

WE DARE TO

rethink our use of resources to make a Net Positive impact

by 2040.

OUR RETHINKING RESOURCES **SUSTAINABLE** BUSINESS COMMITMENTS:



We will become Net We will become Net Positive in carbon Positive in water by 2040.



CIRCULAR ECONOMY

We will embed circular economy principles across our business operations to minimise our impact on the environment and generate new revenue streams.

OUR ALIGNMENT TO THE SDGS:



As awareness and action on addressing global environmental crises reached a pinnacle in 2019, the beginning of this decade was set to be an extraordinary year for environmental stewardship. Yet, the global pandemic which brought with it wide-spread disruption and lasting social and economic impacts, instead has symbolised 2020 as a cautionary tale of what could happen when global risks are not sufficiently planned for and mitigated against. It is now clearer than ever that we must build resilience against climate change into our business and ensure we effectively manage our environmental risks. Despite the re-allocation of our business resources to prioritise the safety, health and wellbeing of our people, how we use and manage our natural resources remained a focus of our activities.

In the MENA region, we are operating in the context of significant challenges, including above-average population growth, water scarcity, and a high susceptibility to climate risk. So, we recognise the immense urgency required to scale-up our investments, innovations and partnerships to drive efficiencies and protect our planet.

Our achievement of becoming the first hotel portfolio in the world to achieve LEED Platinum certification is testament to our commitment to best-in-class building standards. Majid Al Futtaim Hotels are designed and managed to positively contribute to the protection of the environment and wellbeing of their surrounding communities.

Khalifa Bin Braik

Managing Director Majid Al Futtaim – Hotels Majid Al Futtaim – Properties



OUR PROGRESS

BUILDING RESILIENCE ACROSS OUR BUSINESS

As our business continues to grow, it is an imperative that we embed resilience across our portfolio of assets. Our approach to managing our material risks and opportunities to improve our environmental performance throughout the property lifecycle is governed by a set of policies such as our Sustainable Fit-Out Policy for Majid Al Futtaim – Retail and Majid Al Futtaim - Properties' Sustainable Building Policy. The policies detail the standards which should be achieved during the design, delivery and operation of our assets to contribute to our Net Positive and circular economy commitments. They also set expectations regarding external sustainability certifications of which 35 of our buildings hold a LEED, BREEAM or equivalent certification and 12 are currently in the process of being certified. Our continuous efforts to develop and operate sustainable buildings led our 13-property hotel portfolio to become the only portfolio in the world to receive LEED Platinum certification.

Transitioning our operations to renewable energy is an important step in decarbonising our business, reducing our energy costs, and securing supply. During 2020, our shopping malls, communities and retail assets generated nearly 17 million kWh of renewable energy, with 63% generated by our shopping malls.

DARE TODAY CHANGE TOMORROW



EMPOWERING OUR PEOPLE

LOOKING TO THE FUTURE

OUR PROGRESS

Following on from our research on water investment opportunities in the MENA region, we identified key priority interventions. Essential amongst these was developing a detailed understanding of how water offsetting could be applied in practice. Given the resources available in the region, exploring a responsible and reliable approach to water offsetting that could be applied throughout our supply chain was a necessary, anticipatory step.

We have taken steps to understand the climate-related risks most material to our portfolio as we prepare to integrate these risks into our strategic decision-making. We undertook a portfolio climate risk modelling exercise across all our assets and tenant sites to identify the impacts of climate-related risks and opportunities on our portfolio and enhance our risk management procedures.

To embed the consideration and subsequent management of these risks in practice, we have developed a climate risk tool which supports our understanding and consideration of physical and transitional risks for each stage of the property lifecycle, from development and operations. Employees have received training on climate-related risks and the use of the tool and are expected to utilise this tool to support awareness in their roles. In 2021, we are undertaking a business-level risk assessment to identify the climate-related risks most material to our business, supporting a greater understanding of the impacts of these risks and to inform targeted investment and risk management action. This assessment as well as the portfolio modelling are vital steps we have taken to inform our first response to the Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) this year, which can be found on page 35 of this report.



In collaboration with the UAE Ministry of Climate Change and Environment, we marked World Environment Day in 2020 by hosting 100 movie enthusiasts in their Tesla electric cars at the MENA region's first carbonneutral drive-in cinema on the rooftop of Mall of the Emirates. Our ongoing partnership with Dubai Carbon Centre of Excellence ensures that all screenings held at the VOX Cinemas' Drive-In are carbon neutral by reducing avoidable carbon emissions and offsetting those remaining.

IN THE FIRST THREE MONTHS, THE PARTNERSHIP HAS OFFSET 19.32 tCO₂e FOR A TOTAL OF 1,400 CARS



AL ZAHIA'S ORGANIC URBAN FARM

waste management, has a huge impact on our planet with one study stating it is responsible for a third of all greenhouse gas emissions associated with human activities in 2015¹. This is to say nothing of the significant strain it places on our destruction of ecosystems and continuing biodiversity loss.

environmental footprint of agriculture through initiatives such as our region's first retail hydroponic farms. This year, we replicated the success in our Al Zahia community with the opening of an organic urban farm. Through regenerative farming techniques, we use organic waste from our Carrefour to several benefits such as higher carbon emission absorption and produce resilience. We are also looking into sourcing organic waste from our residents in the future to encourage more circular principles.

The farm produces herbs, including basil and rosemary as well as 30 varieties of vegetables for our community. This serves as an education opportunity as well, encouraging residents to lead healthier lives and connecting them with nature, which is shown to have a positive impact on wellness². By farming the produce on site, we also avoid the emissions associated with parts of the food system, including emissions from food loss at the farm level to food waste in supermarkets.



OUR PROGRESS

NET POSITIVE

As governments, business, and society commit to reducing their negative impact on our planet, at Majid Al Futtaim, we want our Sustainable Business Commitments to reflect our desire to leave the world in a better condition than we found it. So, in 2017 we committed to become Net Positive in carbon and water across our Company by 2040.

Net Positive means more than just doing no harm, it is a pledge to do more good for the environment than damage and, in this case, take more carbon out of the atmosphere than we emit and ensure we create more clean water than we use. In practice, we will minimise the emissions created by our operations, increase the renewable energy supply using a combination of on-site generation and off-site purchasing, and offset any residual carbon that we cannot remove, ensuring that we save more carbon than we produce. We will optimise the efficiency of our water use and seek to maximise opportunities to source and manage it sustainably, including the evaluation of the use of treated wastewater. We will also pursue water offsetting options for the emissions we are not able to mitigate whilst recognising that water use cannot be reduced to zero in the same way that carbon use can.

The charts on the following page reflect the progress we have made to date. Our Company-wide operational carbon emissions have decreased by 9.2% alongside a 17.5% reduction in water consumption, against 2019. As anticipated, the temporary closure of some of our assets due to the global pandemic had a significant impact on our environmental performance, which has only strengthened our commitment to ramp up our efforts to reduce our impact.

We will continue to invest in the critical tools and infrastructure, including renewable energy and water efficiency and reuse technology, that will help us realise our first carbon and water reduction targets in 2022 and the eventual achievement of our 2040 Net Positive commitment.

CARBON EMISSIONS (TONNES OF CO₂e)



WATER USE (M³)



Majid Al Futtaim's carbon footprint has decreased 9.2% and 3.1% in 2020, against 2019 and 2016's baseline respectively. This is due to increased efficiencies across the portfolio and also due to closures and reduced operations because of the pandemic. Whilst we continued to explore and encourage the adoption of renewable energy sources across the business, our emissions reduction has not yet benefited from this as these initiatives are not in full operation.

The impact of COVID-19 coupled with our continuous efforts towards the wider implementation of water efficiency measures, including TSE initiatives across our portfolio, have been critical towards a stable decrease trend in water usage across the company, leading to a 17.5% and 11% decrease against 2019 and 2016 respectively.

Despite the challenges brought by COVID-19, Majid Al Futtaim expanded its operations with a new market entry and core business growth, including the opening of Majid Al Futtaim – Retail's first store in Uzbekistan, 48 new hypermarkets and supermarkets across the region, and expansion in KSA with the opening of 42 new cinema screens. This has resulted in a 40% increase in floor area across the Company against a 2016 baseline.

FLOOR AREA (M²)



Data has been restated compared to previous years as more complete and accurate data is available.

MAJID AL FUTTAIM SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2020

CARBON EMISSIONS

Whereas our previous focus has been primarily on addressing operational carbon emissions, in 2020, we created an assessment tool to calculate the embodied carbon in our developments during the construction stages. We know that these embodied carbon emissions are a significant source of carbon emissions in the lifecycle of our buildings. This tool enables us to measure, monitor and manage our emissions, which is evidenced through our My City Centre Masdar study where we achieved a 21% reduction in embodied carbon for major materials, a 114kg CO₂e/m² saving which is equivalent to CO₂ emissions of 1,220 flights from Dubai to New York on an A380. Moving forward, the tool is an important step in helping us understand the whole lifecycle impact of our buildings.

We were one of the first three signatories to the World Green Building Council's Net Zero Carbon Buildings Commitment that states buildings must be net zero carbon in operation by 2050. As part of this, we completed the 2020 Reporting Form that details the progress we are making against our commitment. It is of great importance to us that we demonstrate transparency and disclose progress against our ambitions.

As we strengthen our support to the global agenda, we are also exploring Majid Al Futtaim's options for setting Science Based Targets (SBTs), which will ensure our emissions-reduction targets are aligned with the latest science on what is needed to reach the goals of the Paris Climate Agreement.

WATER AND CARBON OFFSETTING

Water is an incredible challenge for our region. We have worked to ensure that opportunities for optimising water efficiency are pursued. We recognise that it will be challenging to achieve water neutrality by efficiency and alternative sources alone. Therefore, we focused on developing a strong understanding of water offsetting practice and the options for us to implement such practices throughout our supply chain including increasing water efficiency by financing or installing water saving technology, such as drop irrigation. As a result, we have developed a water offsetting strategy to address residual water consumption as we achieve our Net Positive water ambitions.

Our pursuit of offsetting options has not been confined solely to water. In 2020, we developed our carbon offsetting strategy through which we will manage the residual carbon emissions that we are not able to reduce by 2040. Carbon offsetting is a considerably more advanced field than water offsetting and so we have already been able to identify not only the best practices, but also potential suppliers and indicative prices as part of this strategy. OVERVIEW

DARE TODAY, CHANGE TOMORROW

> TRANSFORMIN LIVES

RETHINKING RESOURCES

EMPOWERING OUR PEOPLE

GOVERNANCE

LOOKING TO THE FUTURE

PERFORMANCE

SPOTLIGHT ON: CREATING OUR CIRCULAR ECONOMY

The launch of our circular economy strategy, Unlocking Value, was an important milestone in our Dare Today, Change Tomorrow journey in 2020. The strategy formalises our commitment and approach to embed circularity firmly into our business model by 2030 and defines a roadmap to integrate lifecycle thinking into all business planning and decision-making. Unlocking Value is underpinned by five key pillars which are: understanding our organisational resource flows to reduce waste; implementing internal systems to maximise the value of resources; supporting our supply chain to progress towards circularity; engaging with our customers to help them make circular choices; and supporting research and innovation to accelerate the global transition to a circular economy. Through these activities, we aim to harness the estimated 16.5 trillion AED in economic output the circular economy could generate by 2030³ as well as future proof our business against risks associated with the exploitation of natural resources.

UNLOCKING VALUE IS UNDERPINNED BY FIVE EYPILLARS 1 1 understanding our organisational resource flows to reduce waste 5 sporting research and innovation to accelerate the global transition to acreutar economy 2 4 3 9 suporting our suporting with or customers to help them make circular choices 3 9 suporting our suporting our

 attps://newsroom.accenture.com/news/the-circular-economy-could-unlock-4-5-trillion-of-economic-growth-finds-new-book-by-accenture.htm



MAJID AL FUTTAIM SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2020

Despite what was a challenging year, we are on track to meet the milestones laid out in our roadmap. This year, we signed up to the CE100 initiative, a programme created by the Ellen MacArthur Foundation, which brings together leading organisations with the objective of innovating, developing and implementing circular economy opportunities. We also forged partnerships with organisations who can support us in effectively maximising the value of our waste. For example, since the start of 2020, Carrefour Kenya has been working with a local partner to recycle paper, plastic, metal and organic waste. As a result, 92% of their operational waste is now being recycled and over the year has offset 581,221 kg of CO_2 emissions, equivalent to saving a forest area the size of 810 football pitches. Carrefour Georgia has taken on a unique partnership with the Caucasus Bears farm to provide their bears with older fruit and vegetables which can no longer be sold in store. In another example, Carrefour Jordan collaborated with the Royal Marine Conservation Society and the United Nations Development Programme to install the first of two reverse vending machines for plastic, glass and metal bottles at the Agaba Provenance public beaches. This initiative is unique in that it incentivises visitors to recycle their bottles by providing a MyClub loyalty point for every bottle saved. 500 bottles were recycled during the first two weeks, and owing to the success of the initiative, four additional reverse vending machines will be installed across Amman.

At a strategic level, we have undertaken a review of the extent to which circular economy principles are embedded into our goods' supply chain. Based on this, we will provide training and opportunities to our suppliers for closing the loop throughout our supply chain. We have also started to measure our sources of waste to identify opportunities for improved measurement and reduced waste generation. We hope to be able to systematically scale up this work.

On a smaller scale, simple collective actions can make a big impact and we are continuing to roll-out our Single-Use Plastics Phase-out Policy across the business by 2025. Carrefour Uzbekistan is the first retail store in the country to introduce and transition to eco bags, paper and reusable bags over plastics. With the rise of online grocery shopping, Carrefour Bahrain made the decision to deliver all orders made through the Carrefour app in reusable bags at no additional cost. In addition, Food Central which was launched with the redevelopment of City Centre Deira, utilises reusable dinnerware and cutlery over their disposable counterparts and has implemented a system whereby tenants receive points based on the weight of their waste which can be exchanged for staff rewards. These initiatives not only contribute towards our 2025 goal but help our customers and tenants make more sustainable choices.

VERVIEW

DARE TODA CHANGE TOMORROV

> TRANSFORMIN LIVES

RETHINKING RESOURCES

EMPOWERING

GOVERNANCE

LOOKING TO THE FUTURE

PERFORMANCE

EMPOWERING OUR PEOPLE

WE DARE TO empower our people to unlock their full potential

OUR EMPOWERING OUR PEOPLE SUSTAINABLE BUSINESS COMMITMENTS:



HEALTHY WORKPLACES

To promote a healthy workplace, wellbeing programmes must be in place across the business

and measurable

health, wellbeing

and productivity

demonstrated.

improvements

in employee

*	

ATTRACTING & RETAINING TALENT

Attracting and retaining talent is vital for our success and integrating sustainability into these programmes is key to our approach for meeting the evolving values of our workforce.



TRAINING & DEVELOPMENT

To foster our employees' growth and adapt to today's dynamic work environment, we provide sustainability training to employees and suppliers throughout the value chain.



HUMAN RIGHTS & EMPLOYMENT CONDITIONS

We will continue to lead by example by requiring all employees and direct (tier 1) contractors to comply with the International Labour Organisation's eight core conventions.



The COVID-19 pandemic reinforced the trend towards a people-centric culture as supporting LAUNCHED employees and staying connected became **DIVERSITY AND** even more important during 2020 amid INCLUSION unprecedented levels of uncertainty and disruption. With an increasingly mobile workforce, businesses POLICY have been operating in a competitive space when it comes to attracting and retaining talent and as a result, are striving for a workplace culture which places employees first and foremost to enhance the employee experience. This year, our main priority was the wellness and safety of our employees whether they were working remotely or continuing to work at our assets to provide vital products and services for our communities. We are inspired by their agility and resilience during this time and we are committed to continually adapt and evolve our policies and practices in line with our employees' needs and expectations.

FOSTERING A WORKPLACE FOR ALL

With over 43,000 employees representing more than 110 nationalities, we see diversity of all varieties as an advantage that brings together a difference of ideas, perspectives and experiences which supports our growth, innovation and creativity. Through our practices and policies, we foster a values-led, diverse and inclusive culture where all colleagues, regardless of their differences, are treated fairly and with respect. We do not tolerate harassment or discrimination of any kind and our Code of Conduct, which all employees are required to sign annually, sets out the behaviour and expectations of all our people. In 2020, we strengthened our approach through the development of our Diversity and Inclusion Policy which defines our commitment to reinforcing these values for our employees as well as in our workplace and communities. The governance of our policy is supported by the Diversity and Inclusion Steering Committee and Task Force, made up of representatives from each Operating Company and the Leadership team, who have already been instrumental in enhancing our inclusive culture, for example, by introducing nursing rooms and recruiting people of determination.

WE SUPPORT OUR PEOPLE IN TAKING THE NEXT STEP IN THEIR CAREERS

13% OF BOARD DIRECTORS ARE FEMALE

65 PAID INTERNSHIPS FOR YOUNG JORDANIANS FROM DISADVANTAGED BACKGROUNDS







We also strive to foster a transparent and supportive culture across the business and employees are encouraged to report anything they see or hear which seems unethical or out of step with our policies and code of conduct using our Ethics hotline, a confidential telephone line which is available 24/7. To read more about how employees can report their concerns, see our 'Health, Safety and Human Rights' section.

The work we do to create equal opportunities for people of determination is a key priority at Majid Al Futtaim. We joined the MENA region's first People of Determination Advisory Panel comprised of a wide range of members including the UAE Ministry of Community Development, Dubai Municipality and Sharjah City for Humanitarian Services, independent experts, and customer representatives who are people of determination or parents of children of determination. Our role in this panel allows us to contribute further to the UAE Government's efforts to make society more inclusive and work with our stakeholders to improve our services, ensuring they are accessible for all members of the community. In addition, we seek to increase the representation of people of determination in our business and this year, we recruited 42 employees across various positions from cashiers to customer service officers, resulting in an overall increase of over 20% in our Carrefour stores. Initiatives which help to prepare adolescents of determination for the workplace environment are important for achieving this aim.

470 ADOLESCENTS OF DETERMINATION RECEIVED IN-STORE TRAINING SINCE 2018

42 PEOPLE OF DETERMINATION RECRUITED INTO RETAIL

DARE TODAY CHANGE TOMORROW

LIVES

LOOKING TO THE FUTURE

OUR PROGRESS

Carrefour Egypt's "Know me, Accept Me" partnership with the Sawiris Foundation for Social Development and SETI Center-Caritas Egypt, provided in-store training for 22 adolescents of determination in 2020, totalling 470 trainees over the past three years which demonstrates the programmes' reach and impact.

As a growing business, we provide opportunities for future generations and increase their readiness for the work environment. Young people often bring new ideas and a fresh perspective, and we value their contribution for ensuring that our company grows in line with their needs. However, personal circumstances and barriers into the workplace too often result in a lack of opportunities. In 2020, Carrefour Jordan together with the National Coalition Against Hunger and Malnutrition (NAJMAH), provided 65 six-month paid internships for young Jordanians from disadvantaged backgrounds, conducting on-the-job training to assist them in building their careers. Once the training is complete, all trainees will be offered the opportunity to become an employee and begin their careers at Majid Al Futtaim.

We also want to improve the representation of women in the workplace, with women currently occupying 12.5% of all board director positions in 2020. We want to cascade this same philosophy throughout all levels of the business and one of our targeted activities this year was the Dubai Women program at Hilton Garden Inn Mall of the Emirates where we provided two eight-week internships for women specialising in technology. For example, one intern was provided practical experience in our IT department, furthering their work experience and strengthening their skills and confidence for their future career.

LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT

Our comprehensive training program and dedicated Leadership Institute provides best in class career development opportunities for all employees at Majid Al Futtaim and ensures they have the skills necessary to grow and adapt in today's dynamic work environment. All our Operating Companies are committed to embedding sustainability into their attraction, retention and development programmes and this has been a key activity during 2020.

We launched our sustainability e-learning module to over 9,250 of our office-based employees across 17 countries. We also developed sustainability training specifically for our frontline staff who are the first point of contact for our customers and play a critical role in the delivery of our Dare Today, Change *Tomorrow* strategy by identifying on-the-ground initiatives and embodying our brand. The training, which will be delivered in 2021, educates employees on our sustainability strategy and shares ways in which they can embed sustainability thinking and actions into their daily activities both at work and at home. We also launched a MAFers-led internal Sustainability Knowledge Sharing Series which covered topics ranging from green buildings to redefining health and safety during the pandemic. As well as presenting insights on a specific topic,

Continuous learning is central to our approach for attracting, developing and retaining talent. We're committed to providing learning opportunities that both equip our employees with the skills of the future, and help them grow as leaders.

Dr. Regis Chasse

Dean of the Leadership Institute Majid Al Futtaim – Holding

the monthly webinar sessions sought to provide employees with a platform to share their experiences and learnings from their sustainability journey. Lastly, we are looking forward to the opening of the Almaza Recruitment and Training Centre in Egypt in 2021, where the local population will have access to inclusive recruitment and training, empowering people with the technical and employability skills needed to establish their careers in retail and hospitality.

An appreciation for the contribution each employee makes to the business is important for maintaining engagement levels and encouraging new ideas and better ways of working. The SWITCH program which took place in 2020 at our Kempinski Hotel Mall of the Emirates provided an opportunity for 16 team members to 'switch' places, with managers stepping into the shoes of their team and vice versa. The program offers the opportunity to understand the bigger picture from a different perspective, encourages the transfer of knowledge, skill creation and development as well as networking, creativity and innovation. The program was successful in that four of the participants developed critical management skills which led to their subsequent promotion to managerial positions.

As many of our leisure and hospitality assets were closed during the height of the coronavirus pandemic, we implemented a large-scale redeployment programme. We reskilled over 1,000 of our leisure, entertainment and cinema employees across five countries by providing practical and health and safety training so they could effectively support the increased demand in our Carrefour business as well as retrain and explore new experiences. As we adapt to meet evolving trends and challenges, reskilling and upskilling will become increasingly important to ensure our employees remain competitive, and this programme is evidence of our ability to respond quickly to unforeseen risks and opportunities.

HEALTH. SAFETY AND HUMAN RIGHTS

Safeguarding the health, safety and human rights of our employees is essential and was our primary focus in 2020 amid COVID-19 (see 'Supporting MAFers through challenging times'). We are committed to upholding the highest standards and support the principles in the Universal Declaration of Human Rights. By embedding values of integrity and ethical behaviour, we encourage a culture of openness, honesty and accountability.

Central to our approach is our Employment Conditions Policy, aligned to international best practice standards, which ensures the protection and enhancement of labour standards including wages and benefits, working hours, annual leave, basic employee rights, women's rights, child labour, health and safety, employee accommodation and education. As well as applying these standards to our own workforce, we expect our direct suppliers (tier 1) and contractors to do the same. We conduct regular health and safety checks, overseen by our Employment Conditions Committee, to monitor compliance against the standards. Suppliers or contractors found to be in violation could face contract termination and exclusion from future tendering processes.

We further prevent non-compliant behaviour by encouraging employees to speak up when they see or hear something that appears to contradict our values and ethics. Employees can report their concerns using several channels including our Ethics Hotline or by speaking to a manager, member of the Ethics Panel or Chief Compliance Officer. All reports are treated with the utmost confidentiality and the Ethics Panel present in each one of our Operating Companies is responsible for managing all instances of non-compliance and overseeing any subsequent actions.

> **95%** OF PROJECTS ACHIEVED AN AUDIT SCORE OF ≥ 90%

22

HEALTH AND

SAFETY AUDITS ON

CONSTRUCTION

PROJECTS



SPOTLIGHT ON: SUPPORTING MAFERS THROUGH **CHALLENGING TIMES**

This year has been an extraordinary time for our employees who have experienced unprecedented levels of disruption and stress, both personally and professionally. The COVID-19 pandemic has brought with it a unique set of challenges, testing our ability to stay connected and prioritise our wellbeing above all else. At Majid Al Futtaim, we have recognised more than ever the important role we play in cultivating wellness amongst our people.

2020 required a transformative approach as we sought to promote wellness amongst employees from the safety of their own homes. We delivered training sessions through virtual webinars, for example, on how to cope with anxiety amid COVID-19. In partnership with Heartist and T&C, one session with over 150 attendees explored the underlying reasons for coronavirus anxiety and how to utilise practical and evidencebased techniques to manage these feelings effectively. We also transitioned our annual Wellness Week to a solely virtual event, which despite being a challenge, provided an opportunity to reach an even greater audience. Engaging over 20,000 employees, sessions included mental health 'LapTalks'; private sessions with doctors, dermatologists, psychiatrists and financial advisors; classes on mindfulness and healthy cooking; webinars on financial wellness; and company-wide workshops on first aid and workplace incident reporting.

We placed a particular emphasis on financial as well as physical health given the stay-at-home orders and so employees were able to enjoy virtual yoga sessions with Lululemon, live workout sessions and took part in our '1 million calorie burn' challenge. To continually improve our approach and evolve our offering in line with our employees' needs, we conduct an annual Healthy Workplace survey. This year, 668 respondents provided valuable insight into their top priorities of a healthy diet, being financially stable and ensuring they get enough sleep each night. Interestingly, 49% of our employees said that mental wellbeing was more important than their physical and financial health. Ensuring we continue to support our employees' mental wellbeing will remain a key priority moving forwards.

We have been inspired by the resilience of our employees throughout the pandemic, and ensuring their health and safety was of the utmost importance. Our efforts are underpinned by our Occupational Health and Safety Policy which defines our commitment to eliminating hazards, mitigating health and safety risks, and raising awareness among employees, contractors and all stakeholders who may be affected by our activities. Despite the high levels of remote working, a significant number of our employees still went to work to support our communities and ensure the seamless running of our operations.





Despite the challenges of COVID-19, we've come together as a community and shown what is possible when we act with empathy and support one another.

Dennis Balogh Health and Safety Senior Manager Majid Al Futtaim – Properties

MAJID AL FUTTAIM SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2020

20,000 EMPLOYEES ENGAGED IN OUR VIRTUAL WELLNESS WEEK

4,000

49% OF EMPLOYEES SAID MENTAL WELLBEING WAS THE MOST IMPORTANT

BAGS WITH ESSENTIALS PROVIDED TO SUPPORT OUR

WORKERS

We implemented social distancing and safety precautionary measures in line with Government guidelines including a mandatory mask requirement, gloves, social distancing, temperature checks when entering and exiting the stores for both employees and merchandisers, the continuous cleaning and sanitisation of all stores, and signage to spread awareness and influence safe behaviours. In all UAE Hypermarkets, we also created sanitisation tunnels, which kill 99.9% of viruses by spraying the user with disinfectant and sanitiser. In some instances, we also provided accommodation and food to our contractors such as security and housekeeping staff to limit the spread of the virus. At our projects in development and employee accommodation, similar prevention and control measures were implemented including updated emergency preparedness and response plans, talks on COVID-19 by nurses, random temperature checks, hand sanitising stations at key touchpoints, and increased cleaning of common facilities such as buses and dining rooms. Ensuring our employees felt appreciated was also a key focus and we provided 4,000 workers across the UAE in our operations and building departments with goodie bags as part of our We've Got Your Back Ramadan campaign including reusable water bottles and bags as well as essentials such as towels, shower gel and toothpaste.

RETHINKING RESOURCES

LOOKING TO THE FUTURE

SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE

Behind our sustainability strategy, Dare Today, Change Tomorrow, is a clear structure of accountability that ensures we continue to drive change across the business and reach our targets and future goals.

The integration of sustainability into the core of what we do has only been possible through open discussion and a clear culture shift. This has created a deep understanding across the business about what is required for us to remain successful and relevant in a world which is rapidly changing. As a result, we now have 15 employees solely dedicated to sustainability through their full-time role as well as sustainability champions, who help us to drive change into our business units across our countries of operation.

For senior management, sustainability is included on the agenda in business meetings and board reports to allow for discussion of the topic as well as performance progress at all levels. Only through embedding sustainability into the core of our daily operations, business meetings and reporting will it be a priority and help us achieve significant impact.

Our Company-wide culture of transparency and accountability has led the Chief Executive Officers of each Operating Company to set sustainability targets for themselves, to ensure the strategy is being driven from the highest level of our business. This will help us achieve our Sustainable Business Commitments and realise our longer-term sustainability vision to create a way of life for a positive future.

Progress against our sustainability strategy is reviewed by the Board and our Chief Executive Officer and overseen by our Chief Sustainability Officer and the corporate sustainability team. This team has facilitated the creation of sustainability action plans in consultation with the Operating Companies which outline the actions each area of the business is required to undertake for us to achieve our Dare Today, Change Tomorrow ambitions.

The corporate sustainability team continues to support the implementation of the action plans along with each Operating Company's dedicated Sustainability Managers. Each Operating Company's Sustainability Manager tracks our sustainability targets and actions on a guarterly basis to ensure that progress is being measured and managed, enabling any issues to be highlighted as early as possible. Progress against our sustainability targets is also tracked guarterly and audited on an annual basis by a third-party auditor.

Our sustainability targets, as well as our environmental data for Majid Al Futtaim – Properties' Green Sukuk portfolio for 2020 will be fully assured by a third-party auditor, enhancing the credibility of our work and demonstrating the commitment the business has to our sustainability agenda. Each year, we report on Majid Al Futtaim's performance against our sustainability

commitments and targets to show our progress to our stakeholders. Please refer to the Assurance statement on page 40 and our 2020 target progress on page 41 of this report.

GOVERNANCE IN ACTION

Alongside our strategy, we have a suite of policies and procedures in line with global best practice, which are reviewed and updated on an annual basis. With 2020 seeing the launch of our Responsible Procurement, Environmental Management System, Sustainable Building, Health and Safety, and Diversity and Inclusion polices, we can further translate our strategy into achievable and measurable actions and reflect the requirements of our stakeholders.

We recognise that the countries we operate in can present challenges related to bribery and corruption due to political conditions or a lack of good corporate governance. Given this risk to our business, we pride ourselves in upholding the highest standards of ethics with each other, our customers, business partners, government, and society. As well as our Code of Conduct which sets out our commitment to complying with the highest standards and laws governing antibribery and corruption, we have implemented a robust risk management framework. For example, each Majid Al Futtaim business utilises a risk register to assess the quality of governance in each country and the risk that employees may be exposed to corrupt behaviour. Where risk is identified, we assess our strategy for managing the risk and, where necessary, take action to improve procedures and protocols. As well as conducting regular audits, we have established a fully independent Ethics hotline (more information can be found on p.31) and an Ethics Panel who are responsible for ensuring that all reports of alleged misconduct are promptly and thoroughly substantiated, handled in line with the criticality level, and initiating independent investigations.

As a further demonstration of our commitment to corporate governance, we became a founding partner of the Pearl Initiative in 2012, a leading independent and non-profit organisation working to improve corporate accountability and transparency in the Gulf Region. The Initiative has a strategic partnership with the United Nations Global Compact to collaborate on programmes and we actively contribute through roundtable discussions and thought leadership to help improve the policies and actions of other organisations to mitigate the risk of corrupt practice in GCC markets.



We are committed to operating as a leading sustainable business and we understand the importance of demonstrating to our stakeholders the steps we are taking to identify and manage climate-related risks.



BOARD OVERSIGHT OF CLIMATE-RELATED RISKS AND ISSUES

We have an extensive track record of sustainability leadership and climate action, and we recognise its importance to our business performance and resilience. Our Board has oversight of progress of our sustainability strategy, Dare Today, Change Tomorrow, including our Sustainable Business Commitments and environmental targets, through sustainability updates that are included in all guarterly Board meetings. Decisions on investment, capital expenditure and other climaterelated commitments are raised by our Chief Sustainability Officer to the Board for approval.

Our Board has ongoing oversight of climate-related risks through our established Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Framework (see chart above). Our Corporate Compliance team is responsible for developing a Combined Risk Report, which features the top enterprise risks that require executive and Board oversight. The Combined Risk Report is presented to and reviewed by the Holding Management Risk Committee and, ultimately, the Board and is used to guide strategic and risk management decision-making. Sustainability and climate-related risks are fully integrated into our overall risk management and escalated via the ERM Framework as required.

RESPONDING TO THE TASK FORCE ON CLIMATE-RELATED FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES

MANAGEMENT'S ROLE IN ASSESSING AND MANAGING **RISKS AND OPPORTUNITIES**

Sustainability and climate-related issues and considerations are fully integrated into our day-to-day business operations. We have several climate-related committees whose roles are to oversee the effective implementation of our climaterelated programmes and climate risk management actions, for example the Sustainability Steering Group, Green Sukuk Committee, Sustainability and Finance Committee, War on Waste Committee and Net Positive Committee.

These management committees and our Operating Company Sustainability Managers are responsible for including any identified sustainability and climate-related risks in our risk registers. These risks will then be escalated through our ERM Framework as described above. The Business Unit Management Risk Committees and Operating Company Management Risk Committees are responsible for the assessment and management of risks faced by the Business Units and Operating Companies, respectively.

LOOKING TO THE FUTURE

NCE

RESPONDING TO THE TASK FORCE ON CLIMATE RELATED FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES

STRATEGY

UNDERSTANDING THE IMPACTS TO OUR BUSINESS

We have taken steps to understand how climate-related risks may impact our business over the long term. As part of our climate risk assessment process we used scenario analysis to conduct a business-level risk assessment. We assessed how climaterelated risks will impact our business and strategy, and whether the governance structures we have in place are sufficient to monitor and manage the risks we have identified. For the scenario analysis we used the RCP 4.5 and RCP 8.5 scenarios, in line with the recommendations of TCFD. RCP 4.5 considers a scenario aligned with the Paris Agreement to keep average global temperatures below 2°C of warming, while RCP 8.5 is a high emissions scenario where policy action is insufficient to limit warming, resulting in increased physical risk.

UNDERSTANDING THE IMPACTS TO OUR PORTFOLIO

We have conducted quantitative portfolio climate risk modelling of our entire portfolio, where we modelled physical and transitional climate risks, and opportunities, in the RCP 4.5 and RCP 8.5 scenarios. We quantified financial Value-at-Risk figures for our portfolio between now and 2100, which were incorporated into our business level assessment of risk. Together, this two-part risk assessment has given us a clear picture of the potential impacts of climate-related risks to our assets, total portfolio and to our Operating Companies' strategies, and highlighted priority areas for focused investment and risk management action.

RISKS IDENTIFIED OVER THE SHORT, MEDIUM AND LONG TERM

We recognise that climate-related issues materialise over the medium to longer term and that the assets we develop and occupy now will still be here far into the future. Without appropriate risk management, climate-related risks could have impacts to: asset values; revenue streams; our ability to raise financial capital: our ability to secure appropriate insurance cover: capital expenditure requirements to comply with regulation; capital expenditure required to install resilience measures or repair damage from physical climate events; or our brand reputation. It is our responsibility to consider the risks posed to our business with a longer term lens.

OUR OPPORTUNITIES

We have identified several opportunities that we can leverage to deliver outstanding sustainability performance to our stakeholders and customers. These include the opportunity to display sustainability leadership and resilience through proactive and early investment into climate risk resilience measures; to secure long term cost savings and achievement of our Net Positive commitment through long-term renewable energy PPAs; and to provide electric vehicle charging infrastructure for our customers and maintain our position as a provider of leading destinations as the electric vehicle market matures. As we begin to include consideration of these opportunities within our strategic and financial planning, we gain the opportunity to move towards more stable revenue streams that build long term resilience.

SHORT TERM - BETWEEN NOW AND 2030 • MEDIUM TERM - 2030-2050 • LONG TERM - 2050-2100

Increased energy and carbon cost - seasonal pattern shifts, temperature extremes, water scarcity and regulatory pressure could all increase the cost of energy and carbon emissions, while presenting an opportunity if we are energy efficient and powered by renewables.

Increase in renewables as fossil fuels phase **out** – early action to invest in renewable energy is a key component of achieving our Net Positive Carbon commitment and meeting the increasing demand for renewably-supplied energy.

Water stress and drought - climate change may place stress on water resources, which are already under pressure in our region. Water efficiency is vital to meeting our Net Positive Water commitment

Insurance challenges

- climate-related risks may impact our ability to secure appropriate, affordable insurance for our assets.

climate-related risks.

Climate-related litigation climate-related litigation cases may be raised against businesses that do not demonstrate proactive action to manage

Coastal flooding - coastal flooding risk is a long-term risk for many coastal areas worldwide and our region. The private sector and governments in the region must collaborate to invest in regional flood defence measures to ensure the region remains resilient over the long term.

BUILDING RESILIENCE

We have enhanced our business resilience by proactively seeking to identify, understand and take action on climate-related risks, and by integrating climate-related issues into our core business strategy. We are incorporating the results of our climaterelated risk assessment process into our business and financial planning and strategic decision-making processes, and we are constantly enhancing our processes to ensure they align with our sustainability ambitions. Every function of our business plays a role in achieving our sustainability and Net Positive ambitions and is invested in doing so. Some of the key ways in which we are building resilience into our strategy are detailed below:

- We are diversifying our strategy and placing a greater focus on providing leading customer experience through digital strategies. Moving away from purely focusing on real estate assets will support our resilience to climate-related risks and secure broader, more resilient revenue streams.
- The achievement of our Net Positive Carbon and Water commitments will ensure resilience to several climaterelated risks, including increased energy and carbon cost, increased uptake of renewables, water stress and drought, temperature extremes and heat stress. Achievement of our Net Positive Carbon commitment will support our resilience to the transition to a lower-carbon economy, including risks described by the RCP 4.5 scenario.
- We have refreshed our Responsible Procurement Policy and are working with our key suppliers to ensure they are operating in a sustainable way, helping to support our resilience to climate-related supply chain risks.
- · We recognise that, in order to support regional resilience, we must work closely with governments, NGOs, financial institutions and local communities. Over the next year we aim to actively engage with these parties and stimulate discourse that will increase awareness and climate action in the region.

MAJID AL FUTTAIM SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2020

MANAGEMENT

RISK IDENTIFICATION, ASSESSMENT AND MANAGEMENT

We have identified and assessed the climate-related risks and opportunities to our business and portfolio through our rigorous business and portfolio climate risk assessment process.

The portfolio modelling identified financial Value-at-Risk figures for each risk, providing a quantifiable way for us to prioritise risks over each other and to consider the positioning of our entire portfolio. The business level assessment assessed the impact and likelihood of each climate-related risk, taking into consideration the quantitative portfolio Value-at-Risk results and potential financial implications to operating costs. revenue, capital expenditures, capital allocation, acquisitions or divestments, and access to capital.

To manage these risks, we have in place several policies and processes that ensure the optimal sustainability performance of our new and operational buildings. For our operations and developments, our Sustainable Building Policy and Design Standards include minimum sustainability standards and climate-related requirements to ensure achievement of our targets (please see page 41). We have also developed a climate change adaptation tool that allows for the consideration of climate risks prior to development and design. To further enhance our resilience, this climate risk assessment process has provided key insights that will enable us to prioritise investment and enhance our governance, risk management processes and policies. We have identified several risk management actions for our governance of climate-related risks, as well as detailed, risk-specific mitigation and adaptation actions. We are working to prioritise these into an action plan that we will implement in the coming years as our 'roadmap to resilience'. We will be able to report on our progress in our future TCFD responses.

MANAGEMENT

INTEGRATION INTO OVERALL RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk Owners raise sustainability and climate-related risks for inclusion in our sustainability risk register. These risks are assessed using our Enterprise Risk Management assessment criteria, allowing us to assess and prioritise climate-related risks in relation to enterprise risks and in the context of overall risk management. This allows for top sustainability and climaterelated risks to be escalated via our ERM Framework, with our top enterprise risks compiled by our Corporate Compliance teams in our Consolidated Risk Report on a quarterly basis. These are reviewed by the Operating Company Management Risk Committees and Holding Management Risk Committee and, ultimately, communicated to the Board. We also conduct ongoing regulatory and legislative reviews, including reviews of climaterelated regulation, with material legislation risks incorporated within our risk registers as required.

On an ongoing basis, we monitor and manage identified climate-related risks through our sustainability risk register. Every quarter we assess how these risks are evolving over time and track associated risk management actions. We assign responsibilities to 'Action Owners' who are responsible for ongoing risk monitoring and overseeing the successful implementation of these measures.

In the case where a risk materialises that requires a rapid response from the business, risk management actions can be immediately approved by an Operating Company's CEO and implemented without an extensive approval process. This allows us to be agile and reactive where required.

We also work with our tenants and suppliers to achieve our sustainability ambitions. Our energy, water and waste reporting and Net Positive Carbon and Water commitments include the consumption our tenants are responsible for. To achieve our targets, it is vital that we engage with our tenants for better disclosure of their environmental data and provide tenant engagement programmes to encourage sustainable consumption. We are working closely with our tier 1 suppliers to ensure effective climate risk management across our value chain and are delivering training in order for them to improve their performance.

METRICS AND TARGETS

METRICS AND ENVIRONMENTAL REPORTING

We have publicly reported on our environmental performance since 2016, including Scopes 1, 2 and 3 greenhouse gas emissions calculated in line with the GHG Protocol methodology. We report our energy, water and waste data against our 2016 baseline to allow for historical trend analysis, and our data is third-party, independently assured to meet best-practice transparency. We also report on the amount of renewable energy we generate on-site at our assets. Please see pages 24-25 for all our environmental reporting.

Our carbon and water metrics are of particular importance to our business strategy as we have made public Net Positive commitments to demonstrate leadership in climate action, but also because achievement of these will help to mitigate a number of climate-related risks, including increased energy and carbon cost, temperature extremes and heat stress, and water stress and drought.

We track our green building certifications across our portfolio. 35 buildings in our portfolio have green building certifications or equivalent and we have set a minimum standard for new developments of LEED Gold, Estidama 3 Pearl or BREEAM Very Good ratings, with aspirational targets that aim higher. Please see page 21 for further information.

We plan to develop additional climate-related metrics that we will use to monitor and track climate-related risks and opportunities over time. We plan to include these metrics in future TCFD reporting.

TARGETS

For our comprehensive set of sustainability targets for each Operating Company please see page 41. We set yearly targets and report on our progress annually in our sustainability report.

All sustainability and senior management employees have sustainability KPIs integrated into performance reviews. Our Operating Companies have sustainability performance targets, principally focused on achievement of our Net Positive Carbon and Water commitments. Target owners responsible for the delivery of these targets have these KPIs integrated into their performance reviews with achievement of KPIs impacting remuneration.

We are working to ensure that sustainability KPIs are cascaded to all head office employees, where remuneration and career development is dependent upon performance against these KPIs. This allows us to embed sustainability into our strategy by securing buy-in from all employees at every level of the Company.

THE NEXT STEPS OF OUR SUSTAINABILITY JOURNEY

With the completion of our first company-wide strategy fast approaching as we are set to realise our 2022 Sustainable Business Commitments, we are looking to a future now shaped by the aftermath of COVID-19 with long-term impacts expected to be felt over the coming years. It is clear that there remains widespread uncertainty regarding the challenges ahead, so it is vital that we reassess our most material issues, risks and opportunities and refocus our efforts amid a rapidly changing global context.

In 2021, we will undertake a comprehensive strategy review to ensure our most material Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) issues are identified and addressed to continue delivering value for our diverse stakeholders and to safeguard our commitment to operating responsibly. This exercise will support Majid Al Futtaim in taking immediate action on society's most pressing issues as well as the development of our targets beyond 2022.

As we look to the future, we are confident in our ability to drive positive change regarding today's global challenges across the Middle East, Africa, and Asia markets. Driven forward by a dedication to stakeholder capitalism, we will continue to work with our partners to ensure our business evolves in line with their expectations and that we create great moments for everyone, everyday. In 2021, we are taking significant steps to strengthen the robustness of our strategy and approach to actively tackle the climate crisis. Our response to the TCFD recommendations will support Majid Al Futtaim in understanding the impacts of climate-related risks and opportunities on our business and applying the required





SCIENCE BASED TARGETS (SBTS)

We have commenced an exploration exercise to determine Majid Al Futtaim's options for setting SBTs. This will require a comprehensive review of our corporate emissions as well as a deep dive into the potential scope, boundaries and methods which can be utilised to define our SBTs. The review will comprise of a thorough reassessment of our existing 21 sustainability material issues, utilising input from a range of stakeholders and alignment with existing and emerging legislation, ultimately ensuring their continued significance in terms of impact and relevance.

STRATEGY REVIEW

LOOKING TO THE FUTURE

governance and management. Further aligning our strategy to the UN SDGs by mapping our material issues against the goals at a target level, will ensure we are actively contributing to the global agenda and are able to measure and monitor our contribution. Not only does this allow us to communicate on the varied demands of our stakeholders clearly and effectively, but also demonstrates our ongoing pledge towards sustainability leadership.

Below, we have listed several projects which have commenced or which we plan to undertake in the near future. Given their value to the delivery of our *Dare Today, Change Tomorrow* ambitions, we look forward to sharing our progress on these projects moving forward.

It has been a pleasure to watch Majid Al Futtaim grow on its sustainability journey and evolve to encompass aspects such as increased transparency, stakeholder capitalism and environmental awareness. With ambitious Net Positive targets and an unwavering commitment to some of society's most pressing challenges, I am confident that Majid Al Futtaim will continue to drive improvements in regional standards and make a substantial positive impact in the communities where it operates.

H.E Dr. Thani bin Ahmed Al Zeyoudi UAE Minister of State for Foreign Trade



RESPONSIBLE PROCUREMENT

44 🗕

We will continue our engagement with suppliers and focus on upskilling to ensure they align with our sustainability requirements and strategy by the end of 2022.



DIVERSITY AND INCLUSION

Continuing to foster a diverse and inclusive culture will be a key priority moving forward. Central to our efforts is the work we have begun to set diversity and inclusion focused targets across the business which will drive our performance and measure our success. EW T(

DARE TODAY, CHANGE TOMORROW

TRANSFORMIN

RETHINKING RESOURCES

EMPOWERING OUR PEOPLE

GOVERNANCE

LOOKING TO THE FUTURE

PERFORMANCE

INDEPENDENT ASSURANCE STATEMENT

TO: THE STAKEHOLDERS OF MAJID AL FUTTAIM

Independent assurance statement by Upstream Sustainability Services, JLL ("Upstream") to the stakeholders of Majid Al Futtaim Holding concerning the environmental data used in its 2020 Annual Sustainability Report and 2021 Green Sukuk Report.

SCOPE OF WORK

Majid Al Futtaim engaged JLL to provide independent assurance of Energy, Water and GHG data from the Green Sukuk Portfolio relevant to its 2020 Annual Sustainability Report and 2021 Green Sukuk Report. The engagement was Type 2 moderate assurance in accordance with the AA1000AS v3 standard which consisted of:

- A. Evaluation of Majid Al Futtaim's adherence to the AA1000 AccountAbility Principles (AA1000AS v3) of inclusivity, materiality, responsiveness and impact;
- B. Evaluation of the reliability of the specified sustainability performance information and associated data collection and management processes and systems relating to:
 - 2020 January to December Energy, Water and GHG data from the 2020 Annual Sustainability Report and 2021 Green Sukuk Report

LEVEL OF ASSURANCE AND LIMITATIONS

JLL provided a moderate level of assurance which included desktop review, management and property level data verification and evidence gathering from internal sources and third parties. The verification did not include financial data, technical descriptions of or information relating to buildings or other information not related to sustainability.

The scope of our data testing was limited to 2020. We tested a sample of 324 data points from a total of 27 data sources (e.g. meters or waste disposal routes) from:

• 23 properties within the Green Sukuk for calendar year 2020 that are reporting environmental data in the 2020 Annual Sustainability Report and 2021 Green Sukuk Report, namely: Aloft Hotel, Hilton Garden Inn (Mall of the Emirates, Dubai), Majid Al Futtaim Tower 1, Majid Futtaim Tower 2, City Centre Almaza, City Centre Beirut, City Centre Fujairah, City Centre Me'aisem, City Centre Mirdif, City Centre Suhar, Mall of Egypt, My City Centre Al Barsha, My City Centre Al Dhait, My City Centre Sur, Kempinski Hotel (Mall of the Emirates, Dubai), Sheraton Hotel (Mall of the Emirates, Dubai), Pullman Hotel and Residence (Deira City Centre, Dubai), IBIS Hotel (Deira City Centre, Dubai), Novotel (Deira City Centre, Dubai), Novotel Suite & IBIS (Mall of the Emirates, Dubai), Le Meridien Hotel (City Centre Bahrain), The Westin Hotel (Bahrain City Centre, Bahrain), IBIS Rigga Hotel (Dubai)

A: EVALUATION OF MAJID AL FUTTAIM - PROPERTIES' ADHERENCE TO THE AA1000 ACCOUNTABILITY PRINCIPLES (AA1000AS V3) OF INCLUSIVITY, MATERIALITY, RESPONSIVENESS, AND IMPACT

Based on the scope of work described above, nothing has come to our attention to suggest that Majid Al Futtaim – Properties did not adhere to the majority of the criteria under the principles of inclusivity, materiality, responsiveness, and impact for 2020.

Further observation and recommendations can be found in the full assurance statement here http://maf.am/AssuranceStmnt.

B: EVALUATION OF THE RELIABILITY OF THE SPECIFIED SUSTAINABILITY PERFORMANCE INFORMATION AND ASSOCIATED DATA COLLECTION AND MANAGEMENT **PROCESSES AND SYSTEMS**

Based on the scope of the work described above, nothing has come to Upstream's attention that causes it to believe that the specified 2020 Energy and Water performance information or GHG emissions are not fairly stated for Majid Al Futtaim's Green Sukuk.

Further information on the responsibilities and methodology applied to this process can be found in the full assurance statement here http://maf.am/AssuranceStmnt.

INDEPENDENCE OF ASSURANCE

Due to our expertise and experience with non-financial information, sustainability management and social and environmental issues, we have the competencies required to conduct this independent assurance engagement. We are bound by the JLL Code of Business Ethics and are independent as defined by AA1000AS v3.

Upstream is a consultant to Majid Al Futtaim and provides support on their environmental, social and governance programme. The assurance team has not been involved in the delivery of these other services for Majid Al Futtaim and we do not consider that there is any conflict of interest between these other services and this assurance engagement,

Andrew Mercer

Director Head of Energy Services, JLL - Upstream Sustainability Services

Robert Moore

Sustainability Consultant, JLL – Upstream Sustainability Services



Majid Al Futtaim has committed to an ambitious set of sustainability targets across three focus areas in 2020. Here we provide a detailed update on progress against our 2020 sustainability targets, which have been independently audited by a third-party auditor.

This target assessment is reported on an "Achieved" and "Not Achieved" scale. All targets marked as partially achieved that passed the audit have been marked as "Achieved". Targets of any status that did not pass the audit have been marked as "Not Achieved".

Our 2020 complete assurance statement can be found on our website.

MAJID AL FUTTAIM - CORPORATE

Achieved 94% Not Achieved 6%

MAJID AL FUTTAIM - HOLDING

Achieved 100%

MAJID AL FUTTAIM - PROPERTIES

Achieved 100%

MAJID AL FUTTAIM - RETAIL

Achieved 95% Not Achieved 5%

MAJID AL FUTTAIM - LEC & LIFESTYLE

Achieved 100%

2020 TARGETS ASSESSMENT



EMPOWERING OUR PEOPLE GOVERNANCE

DARE TODAY, CHANGE TOMORROW

TRANSFORMING LIVES

RETHINKING RESOURCES

LOOKING TO THE FUTURE

41

MAJID AL FUTTAIM – CORPORATE

TRANSFORMING LIVES

MATERIAL ISSUE	2022 SUSTAINABLE BUSINESS COMMITMENT TARGET	2020 TARGET	OVERALL STATUS
Local economic development	All OpCos must annually increase the proportion of expenditure which contributes to the local economy	Implement the Additional Infrastructure Investment Framework on at least one development	Achieved
Local economic development	All OpCos must annually increase the proportion of expenditure which contributes to the local economy	Accelerate socio-economic impacts and assessment by creating an Impact Management Project implementation plan	Not Achieved
Local economic development	All OpCos must invest in an enterprise hub which supports the development of skills and entrepreneurship in line with local needs	Launch Company Start-up Incubator	Achieved
Disruptive technology	All OpCos must invest in an Innovation Centre of Excellence to drive improvement in sustainability performance across Majid Al Futtaim's omnichannel platform	Demonstrate 3 successful projects created by the Innovation Centre of Excellence	Achieved
Customer experience	All OpCos must participate in a Customer Experience Taskforce to implement a programme that uses sustainability to enrich the customer experience across Majid Al Futtaim's omnichannel platform	Roll-out sustainability messaging and activations across customer journey for key assets	Achieved
Promoting sustainable lifestyles	Not Applicable	Work with OpCos to increase impact generated from sustainable lifestyles trends across Majid Al Futtaim	Achieved
Healthy products & services	Not Applicable	Assess opportunities to improve the health and wellbeing of employees and customers through internal building design and fitout	Achieved
Responsible procurement	Not Applicable	Create a Responsible Procurement Taskforce and Policy for the Company	Achieved

RETHINKING RESOURCES

MATERIAL ISSUE	2022 SUSTAINABLE BUSINESS COMMITMENT TARGET	2020 TARGET	OVERALL STATUS
Circular Economy	All OpCos must embed circular economy principles into business operations to minimise harmful impacts on the environment and generate new revenue streams	By end of 2020, sign up to the CE100 initiative	Achieved
Climate change adaptation	Not Applicable	Develop a climate risk strategic decision making framework	Achieved

EMPOWERING OUR PEOPLE

MATERIAL ISSUE	2022 SUSTAINABLE BUSINESS COMMITMENT TARGET	2020 TARGET	OVERALL STATUS
Attracting and retaining future talent	All OpCos must embed sustainability within their attraction, retention and development programmes in order to meet the evolving values of the workforce	Ensure sustainability is embedded in Majid Al Futtaim's retention and development (talent management) programmes	Achieved
Healthy workplaces	All OpCos must have a wellbeing programme in place and measurable real improvements in employee health, wellbeing and productivity	Develop and roll-out Company-wide health and wellbeing survey	Achieved
Sustainability training	All OpCos must provide role-specific sustainability training to all their employees and have a programme that offers sustainability training throughout the value chain focusing on tenants and tier 1 suppliers	Develop training content and roll-out plan for Frontliner sustainability training and awareness programme	Achieved

MAJID AL FUTTAIM - CORPORATE CONTINUED

EMPOWERING OUR PEOPLE

MATERIAL ISSUE	2022 SUSTAINABLE BUSINESS COMMITMENT TARGET	2020 TARGET	OVERALL STATUS
Human rights and employment conditions	All OpCos must promote the advancement of international human rights by ensuring accommodation and employment conditions for all employees and direct (tier 1) contractors comply with the International Labour Organisation's (ILO) eight core conventions	Ensure all Company-wide Human Rights and Employment Conditions Policy requirements are effectively rolled out across all assets and there is sufficient process in place to ensure requirements are met	Achieved
Health & safety	Not Applicable	Develop Health and Safety Policy to apply across all OpCos	Achieved
Changing role of women in the workplace	Not Applicable	Create a Company-wide Diversity and Inclusion Policy	Achieved

MAJID AL FUTTAIM - HOLDING

RETHINKING RESOURCES

MATERIAL ISSUE	2022 SUSTAINABLE BUSINESS COMMITMENT TARGET	2020 TARGET	OVERALL STATUS
Net Positive Carbon	All OpCos must become Net Positive in carbon for all operational, tenant and development activities	Ensure access to high level Net Positive Carbon information via BIDS	Achieved
Net Positive Water	All OpCos must become Net Positive in water for all operational, tenant and development activities	Ensure access to high level Net Positive Water information via BIDS	Achieved
Climate change adaptation	Not Applicable	Support the development of the climate risk strategic decision-making framework	Achieved

EMPOWERING OUR PEOPLE

MATERIAL ISSUE	2022 SUSTAINABLE BUSINESS COMMITMENT TARGET	2020 TARGET	OVERALL STATUS
Attracting and retaining future talent	All OpCos must embed sustainability within their attraction, retention and development programmes in order to meet the evolving values of the workforce	Support the Company in ensuring sustainability is embedded in Majid Al Futtaim's retention and development (talent management) programmes	Achieved
Healthy workplaces	All OpCos must have a wellbeing programme in place and measurable real improvements in employee health, wellbeing and productivity	Develop action plan to implement top 5 OpCo priority actions from 2019 health and wellbeing survey	Achieved
Sustainability training	All OpCos must provide role-specific sustainability training to all their employees and have a programme that offers sustainability training throughout the value chain focusing on tenants and tier 1 suppliers	Support the development of training content and roll-out plan for Frontliner sustainability training and awareness programme	Achieved
Health & safety	Not Applicable	Support the development of a Health and Safety Policy to apply across all OpCos	Achieved
Changing role of women in the workplace	Not Applicable	Contribute to Diversity and Inclusion activities within Holding	Achieved

MAJID AL FUTTAIM SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2020

OVERVIEW

MAJID AL FUTTAIM – PROPERTIES

TRANSFORMING LIVES

MATERIAL ISSUE	2022 SUSTAINABLE BUSINESS COMMITMENT TARGET	2020 TARGET	OVERALL STATUS
Local economic development	All OpCos must annually increase the proportion of expenditure which contributes to the local economy	Support Company implement the Additional Infrastructure Investment Framework on one Majid Al Futtaim development	Achieved
Local economic development	All OpCos must invest in an enterprise hub which supports the development of skills and entrepreneurship in line with local needs		Achieved
Disruptive technology	All OpCos must invest in an Innovation Centre of Excellence to drive improvement in sustainability performance across Majid Al Futtaim's omnichannel platform	Contribute Company-level innovation ideas which align with <i>Dare Today, Change</i> <i>Tomorrow</i> criteria	Achieved
Customer experience	All OpCos must participate in a Customer Experience Taskforce to implement a programme that uses sustainability to enrich the customer experience across Majid Al Futtaim's omnichannel platform	Roll-out sustainability messaging and activations across customer journey for key assets	Achieved
Community Wellbeing & Public realm	Not Applicable	Provide space for short-term local SMEs, artisan retailers and /or food and beverage pop-ups in our assets, with an increased focus on SMEs that have a social purpose i.e. social enterprises, B corps	Achieved
Responsible procurement	Not Applicable	Engage with suppliers to meet the minimum sustainability standards	Achieved
Promoting sustainable lifestyles	Not Applicable	Provide at least 3 activities for healthier lifestyles for Customers and Employees	Achieved
Healthy products & services	Not Applicable	Develop a pilot program to offer healthy products to our customers in at least one asset	Achieved

RETHINKING RESOURCES

MATERIAL ISSUE	2022 SUSTAINABLE BUSINESS COMMITMENT TARGET	2020 TARGET	OVERALL STATUS
Circular Economy		By end of 2020, incorporate circular economy principles in Green Star rating	Achieved
	environment and generate new revenue streams	By end of 2020, embed circular economy principles into existing policies, guidelines and standards to ensure they are integrated into new developments and major refurbishments By the end of 2020, develop and carry out a baseline assessment of supplier maturity with respect to circular economy	Achieved
			Achieved
		By end of 2020, embed the principles of circular economy into Majid Al Futtaim's Sustainable Building Policy	Achieved
		By the end of 2020, work with the customer experience team to embed circularity messaging in the customer journey	Achieved
Climate change adaptation	Not Applicable	Support the development of the climate risk strategic decision-making framework	Achieved

MAJID AL FUTTAIM - PROPERTIES CONTINUED

EMPOWERING OUR PEOPLE

MATERIAL ISSUE	2022 SUSTAINABLE BUSINESS COMMITMENT TARGET	2020 TARGET	OVERALL STATUS
Attracting and retaining future talent	All OpCos must embed sustainability within their attraction, retention and development programmes in order to meet the evolving values of the workforce	Support the Company in ensuring sustainability is embedded in Majid Al Futtaim's retention and development (talent management) programmes	Achieved
Healthy workplaces	All OpCos must have a wellbeing programme in place and measurable real improvements in employee health, wellbeing and productivity	Develop action plan to implement top 5 OpCo priority actions from 2019 health and wellbeing	Achieved
Sustainability training	All OpCos must provide role-specific sustainability training to all their employees and have a programme that offers sustainability training throughout the value chain focusing on tenants and tier 1 suppliers	Support the development of training content and roll-out plan for Frontliner sustainability training and awareness programme	Achieved
Human rights and employment conditions	All OpCos must promote the advancement of international human rights by ensuring accommodation and employment conditions for all employees and direct (tier 1) contractors comply with the International Labour Organisation's (ILO) eight core conventions	Support the development of Company-wide Employment Conditions Policy processes and ensure requirements are implemented within the OpCo	Achieved
Health & safety	Not Applicable	Support the development of a Health and Safety Policy to apply across all Operating Companies	Achieved
Changing role of women in the workplace	Not Applicable	Contribute to diversity and inclusion activities within Majid Al Futtaim - Properties	Achieved

MAJID AL FUTTAIM – RETAIL

TRANSFORMING LIVES

MATERIAL ISSUE	2022 SUSTAINABLE BUSINESS COMMITMENT TARGET	2020 TARGET	OVERALL STATUS
Local economic development	All OpCos must annually increase the proportion of expenditure which contributes to the local economy	Support Company implement the Additional Infrastructure Investment Framework on one Majid Al Futtaim development	Achieved
Local economic development	All OpCos must invest in an enterprise hub which supports the development of skills and entrepreneurship in line with local needs		Achieved
Disruptive technology	All OpCos must invest in an Innovation Centre of Excellence to drive improvement in sustainability performance across Majid Al Futtaim's omnichannel platform	Contribute Company-level innovation ideas which align with <i>Dare Today, Change</i> <i>Tomorrow</i> criteria	Achieved
Customer experience	All OpCos must participate in a Customer Experience Taskforce to implement a programme that uses sustainability to enrich the customer experience across Majid Al Futtaim's omnichannel platform	Roll-out sustainability messaging and activations across customer journey for key assets	Achieved
Community Wellbeing & Public realm	Not Applicable	Run two community engagement programmes (one fundraising campaign based on reforestation, education, and health and the second on food waste)	Achieved
Responsible procurement	Not Applicable	Engage with key suppliers of Majid Al Futtaim – Retail's top 5 risk products/categories to enhance sustainability performance	Achieved
Healthy products & services	Not Applicable	Identify and implement at least 10 activations focused on health and wellbeing across countries	Achieved

MAJID AL FUTTAIM SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2020

GOVERNANCE

LOOKING TO THE FUTURE

MAJID AL FUTTAIM - RETAIL CONTINUED

RETHINKING RESOURCES

MATERIAL ISSUE 2022 SUSTAINABLE BUSINESS COMMITMENT TARGET		2020 TARGET	OVERALL STATUS	
Circular Economy	All OpCos must embed circular economy principles into business operations to minimise harmful impacts on the environment and generate new revenue streams	By end of 2020, ensure that operational waste, such as cartons, plastic bottles from cleaning, pallets and plastic wrap are captured in the quarterly data collection process	Achieved	
		By end of 2020, capture and record quarterly all waste associated with store maintenance	Achieved	
		By end of 2020, incorporate circular economy principles in Green Star rating	Achieved	
		By the end of 2020, develop and carry out a baseline assessment of supplier maturity with respect to circular economy	Achieved	
Climate change adaptation	Not Applicable	Support the development of the climate risk strategic decision-making framework	Achieved	
Biodiversity & ecosystem services	Not Applicable	Develop and adopt an action plan based on the recommendations resulting from risk assessments for seafood and deforestation	Not Achieved	

EMPOWERING OUR PEOPLE

MATERIAL ISSUE	2022 SUSTAINABLE BUSINESS COMMITMENT TARGET	2020 TARGET	OVERALL STATUS	
Attracting and retaining future talent	All OpCos must embed sustainability within their attraction, retention and development programmes in order to meet the evolving values of the workforce	Support the Company in ensuring sustainability is embedded in Majid Al Futtaim's retention and development (talent management) programmes	Achieved	
Healthy workplaces			Achieved	
Health & safety	Not Applicable	Support the development of a Health and Safety Policy to apply across all OpCos		
Changing role of women in the workplace	en in within Majid Al Futtaim – Retail		Achieved	
Sustainability Training	stainability All OpCos must provide role-specific sustainability training Support the development of training content		Achieved	
Human rights and employment conditions	All OpCos must promote the advancement of international human rights by ensuring accommodation and employment conditions for all employees and direct [tier 1] contractors comply with the International Labour Organisation's (ILO) eight core conventions	Support the development of Company-wide Employment Conditions Policy processes and ensure requirements are implemented within the OpCo	Achieved	

MAJID AL FUTTAIM - LEC & LIFESTYLE

TRANSFORMING LIVES

MATERIAL ISSUE	2022 SUSTAINABLE BUSINESS COMMITMENT TARGET	2020 TARGET	OVERALL STATUS
Local economic development	All OpCos must annually increase the proportion of expenditure which contributes to the local economy	Support in the delivery of planning an additional infrastructure that contributes to local economy and invest in the local economy through "In-Kind" initiatives aligned to Dare Today, Change Tomorrow	Achieved
Local economic development	All OpCos must invest in an enterprise hub which supports the development of skills and entrepreneurship in line with local needs		Achieved
Disruptive technology	All OpCos must invest in an Innovation Centre of Excellence to drive improvement in sustainability performance across Majid Al Futtaim's omnichannel platform	Contribute Company-level innovation ideas which align with <i>Dare Today, Change</i> <i>Tomorrow</i> criteria	Achieved
Customer experience	All OpCos must participate in a Customer Experience Taskforce to implement a programme that uses sustainability to enrich the customer experience across Majid Al Futtaim's omnichannel platform	Roll-out sustainability messaging and activations across customer journey for key assets	Achieved
Community Wellbeing & Public realm	Not Applicable	Expand accessible screening programme to provide specialised programs to people with additional care needs across UAE ventures entertainment businesses with a plan to expand to all the operating countries	Achieved
Responsible procurement	Not Applicable	Engage with key suppliers of LEC & Lifestyle's top 5 risk products/categories to enhance sustainability performance	Achieved
Promoting sustainable lifestyles	Not Applicable	Deliver a carbon neutral Dare Today, Change Tomorrow film festival in VOX Cinemas in the UAE to raise awareness and promote sustainable behaviours and run sustainability events at VOX Cinemas supporting Company sustainability targets	Achieved

RETHINKING RESOURCES

MATERIAL ISSUE	2022 SUSTAINABLE BUSINESS COMMITMENT TA
Circular	All OpCos must embed circular economy principles
Economy	business operations to minimise harmful impacts o
	environment and generate new revenue streams

MAJID AL FUTTAIM SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2020

		OVERALL
NT TARGET	2020 TARGET	STATUS
iples into cts on the ns	By end of 2020, collect waste data across all business units. Particular improvement is needed from Fashion (where separation is needed between "stock" waste and operational waste)	Achieved
	By end of 2020, incorporate circular economy principles in Green Star rating	Achieved

	principles in Green Star rating	rinciples in Green Star rating			
	In 2020, develop and carry out a baseline assessment of supplier maturity with respect to circular economy	Achieved			
	Work with the customer experience team to embed circularity messaging in the customer journey by end of 2020	Achieved			
	By end of 2020, show an advert on circularity and waste management before film showings at flagship locations	Achieved			
	Support the development of the climate risk strategic decision-making framework	Achieved			

ANCE

LOOKING TO THE FUTURE

PERFORMANCE

ANNEX

47

MAJID AL FUTTAIM - LEC & LIFESTYLE CONTINUED

EMPOWERING OUR PEOPLE

MATERIAL ISSUE	2022 SUSTAINABLE BUSINESS COMMITMENT TARGET	2020 TARGET	OVERALL STATUS	
Attracting and retaining future talent	All OpCos must embed sustainability within their attraction, retention and development programmes in order to meet the evolving values of the workforce	Support the Company in ensuring sustainability is embedded in Majid Al Futtaim's retention and development (talent management) programmes	Achieved	
Healthy workplaces			Achieved	
Sustainability training	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		Achieved	
Human rights and employment conditions	manAll OpCos must promote the advancement of internationalSupport the development of Company-widehts andhuman rights by ensuring accommodation andEmployment Conditions Policy processes andploymentemployment conditions for all employees and directensure requirements are implemented within		Achieved	
Health & safety	ealth & safety Not Applicable Support the development of a Health and Safety Policy to apply across all Operating Companies		Achieved	
Changing role of women in the workplace	Not Applicable	Contribute to diversity and inclusion activities within LEC & Lifestyle	Achieved	

SDG	Target	Focus Area	Supporting Evidence	
2 ZERO HUNGER	2.4 By 2030, ensure sustainable food production systems and implement resilient agricultural practices that increase productivity and production, that help maintain ecosystems, that strengthen capacity for adaptation to climate change, extreme weather, drought, flooding and other disasters and that progressively improve land and soil quality	Rethinking Resources, Empowering our People	Al Zahia's Organic Urban Farm, p23	OVERVIEW
3 GOOD HEALTH AND WELL-BEING	3.4 By 2030, reduce by one third premature mortality from non- communicable diseases through prevention and treatment and promote mental health and well-being	Transforming Lives,	ng	
	3.8 Achieve universal health coverage, including financial risk protection, access to quality essential health-care services and access to safe, effective, quality and affordable essential medicines and vaccines for all	Rethinking Resources, Empowering	Spotlight on: Supporting MAFers through Challenging Times, p32	CHANGE TOMORROW
	3.9 By 2030, substantially reduce the number of deaths and illnesses from hazardous chemicals and air, water and soil pollution and contamination	our People		TRANSFORMING LIVES
	3.a Strengthen the implementation of the World Health Organization Framework Convention on Tobacco Control in all countries, as appropriate	Transforming Lives, Empowering our People	Smoke-Free Policy	/ES
4 QUALITY EDUCATION	4.3 By 2030, ensure equal access for all women and men to affordable and quality technical, vocational and tertiary education, including university			RESOURCES
	4.4 By 2030, substantially increase the number of youth and adults who have relevant skills, including technical and vocational skills, for employment, decent jobs and entrepreneurship	-	Almaza Recruitment and Training Centre, p30	RCES
	4.7 By 2030, ensure that all learners acquire the knowledge and skills needed to promote sustainable development, including, among others, through education for sustainable development and sustainable lifestyles, human rights, gender equality, promotion of a culture of peace and non-violence, global citizenship and appreciation of cultural diversity and of culture's contribution to sustainable development	Transforming Lives, Empowering our People Internships for young	OUR PEOPLE	
	4.b By 2020, substantially expand globally the number of scholarships available to developing countries, in particular least developed countries, small island developing States and African countries, for enrolment in higher education, including vocational training and information and communications technology, technical, engineering and scientific programmes, in developed countries and other developing countries	-	Jordanians, p30	GOVERNANCE
5 GENDER EQUALITY	5.1 End all forms of discrimination against all women and girls everywhere			
	5.5 Ensure women's full and effective participation and equal opportunities for leadership at all levels of decision-making in political, economic and public life	- Transforming Lives, - Empowering	Fostering a Workplace for All, p29	LOOKING TO THE FUTURE
	5.c Adopt and strengthen sound policies and enforceable legislation for the promotion of gender equality and the empowerment of all women and girls at all levels	our People		PER

UNITED NATIONS SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS MAPPING

DG	Target	Focus Area	Supporting Evidence
6 CLEAN WATER AND SANITATION	6.1 By 2030, achieve universal and equitable access to safe and affordable drinking water for all		It is within Majid Al Futtaim's responsibility to ensure that all water resources provided at our assets are safe and affordable for all
	6.2 By 2030, achieve access to adequate and equitable sanitation and hygiene for all and end open defecation, paying special attention to the needs of women and girls and those in vulnerable situations	Rethinking Resources	Sanitation and hygiene is a high priority for Majid Al Futtaim. In 2020, it moved from a priority to 'saving lives' as it was the only COVID-19 weapon before the vaccine roll-out. In all our assets, we promoted the importance of washing hands and maximum hygiene levels to keep our customers safe
	6.3 By 2030, improve water quality by reducing pollution, eliminating dumping and minimizing release of hazardous chemicals and materials, halving the proportion of untreated wastewater and substantially increasing recycling and safe reuse globally		In 2021, Majid Al Futtaim will research the potential for on-site water treatment. Opportunities, limitations and potential technologies for greywater, blackwater and process water have been reviewed. Based on this, potential technology applications will be explored
	6.4 By 2030, substantially increase water-use efficiency across all sectors and ensure sustainable withdrawals and supply of freshwater to address water scarcity and substantially reduce the number of people suffering from water scarcity	Transforming Lives, Rethinking Resources	Sharjah's Greywater Treatment Plant, p16
AFFORDABLE AND CLEAN ENERGY	7.1 By 2030, ensure universal access to affordable, reliable and modern energy services	Transforming Lives, Rethinking Resources	Providing Light for Communities' Critical Infrastructure, p16
	7.2 By 2030, increase substantially the share of renewable energy in the global energy mix		Building Resilience across our Business, p21
	7.3 By 2030, double the global rate of improvement in energy efficiency	– Rethinking – Resources	The Green Star Rating System encourages tenants to improve their energy efficiency
	7.a By 2030, enhance international cooperation to facilitate access to clean energy research and technology, including renewable energy, energy efficiency and advanced and cleaner fossil-fuel technology, and promote investment in energy infrastructure and clean energy technology	_ Nesources	Majid Al Futtaim listed the world's first benchmark corporate Green Sukuk to finance existing and future green projects
	7.b By 2030, expand infrastructure and upgrade technology for supplying modern and sustainable energy services for all in developing countries, in particular least developed countries, small island developing States, and land-locked developing countries, in accordance with their respective	Transforming Lives	Providing Light for Communities' Critical Infrastructure, p16

SDG Target



8.1 Sustain per capita economic growth in accordance with na circumstances and, in particular, at least 7 per cent gross do product growth per annum in the least developed countries

8.2 Achieve higher levels of economic productivity through dir technological upgrading and innovation, including through a f value added and labour-intensive sectors

8.3 Promote development-oriented policies that support prod activities, decent job creation, entrepreneurship, creativity and innovation, and encourage the formalization and growth of mi small- and medium-sized enterprises, including through acce to financial services

8.4 Improve progressively, through 2030, global resource efficient in consumption and production and endeavour to decouple ecgrowth from environmental degradation, in accordance with the framework of programmes on sustainable consumption and production with developed countries taking the lead

8.5 By 2030, achieve full and productive employment and dec for all women and men, including for young people and perso disabilities, and equal pay for work of equal value

8.7 Take immediate and effective measures to eradicate force end modern slavery and human trafficking and secure the proelimination of the worst forms of child labour, including recru use of child soldiers, and by 2025 end child labour in all its for

8.8 Protect labour rights and promote safe and secure workin environments for all workers, including migrant workers, in pwomen migrants, and those in precarious employment



9.1 Develop quality, reliable, sustainable and resilient infrastr including regional and transborder infrastructure, to support development and human well-being, with a focus on affordab equitable access for all

9.2 Promote inclusive and sustainable industrialization and, b significantly raise industry's share of employment and gross product, in line with national circumstances, and double its sl developed countries

9.3 Increase the access of small-scale industrial and other er in particular in developing countries, to financial services, inc affordable credit, and their integration into value chains and r

9.4 By 2030, upgrade infrastructure and retrofit industries to them sustainable, with increased resource-use efficiency and adoption of clean and environmentally sound technologies and processes, with all countries taking action in accordance with respective capabilities

programmes of support

	Focus Area	Supporting Evidence	
national omestic	mestic wages and adheres to countries' minimum wage across its business and supply chain		OVERVIEW
liversification, focus on high-	Transforming Lives	Majid Al Futtaim contributes to higher levels of economic development and innovation through running initiatives that support Local Economic Development, better Customer Experience, Promoting Sustainable Lifestyles and	DARE TODAY, CHANGE TOMORROW
		developing Healthy Products & Services	TRANSFORMING LIVES
oductive Ind nicro-, cess	-	Start-ups and SME's, p16	
ficiency economic n the 10-year d production,	Rethinking Resources	Spotlight on: Creating our Circular Economy, p26	RETHINKING RESOURCES
cent work ons with		Fostering a Workplace for All, p29	EMPOWERING OUR PEOPLE
ced labour, prohibition and ruitment and prms	Empowering our People	Health, Safety and Human	
ing particular	_	Rights, p31	GOVERNANCE
tructure, rt economic ble and		Additional Infrastructure, p16	LOOKING TO THE FUTURE
by 2030, s domestic	_	Contributing to inclusive and sustainable industrialization	IG TO TURE
share in least	Transforming Lives	and raising industry's share of employment is the impact Majid Al Futtaim has on the 17 countries we operate in. Our presence through our assets (p3) contributes to society and industry, innovation and infrastructure	PERFORMANCE
enterprises, ncluding markets		Start-ups and SME's, p16	ANNEX
o make nd greater nd industrial th their	Rethinking Resources	The Green Star Rating System encourages tenants to improve their energy efficiency	

SDG	Target	Focus Area	Supporting Evidence
9 MOUSTER INNOVATION AND REASTRUCTURE	9.5 Enhance scientific research, upgrade the technological capabilities of industrial sectors in all countries, in particular developing countries, including, by 2030, encouraging innovation and substantially increasing the number of research and development workers per 1 million people and public and private research and development spending		Majid Al Futtaim with Takeoff Technologies launched an automated fulfillment centre, adopting several innovations such as an autonomous shelf auditing and analytics solution
	9.a Facilitate sustainable and resilient infrastructure development in developing countries through enhanced financial, technological and technical support to African countries, least developed countries, landlocked developing countries and small island developing States	Transforming Lives	Additional Infrastructure, p16
	9.b Support domestic technology development, research and innovation in developing countries, including by ensuring a conducive policy environment for, inter alia, industrial diversification and value addition to commodities		The Innovation Centre of Excellence invites employees to share innovative business ideas that can advance the industry's outcome towards innovative sustainable business solutions, products and services
10 REDUCED NEQUALITIES	10.3 Ensure equal opportunity and reduce inequalities of outcome, including by eliminating discriminatory laws, policies and practices and promoting appropriate legislation, policies and action in this regard	Transforming Lives, Empowering our People	Fostering a Workplace for All, p29
	11.3 By 2030, enhance inclusive and sustainable urbanization and capacity for participatory, integrated and sustainable human settlement planning and management in all countries		Additional Infrastructure, p16
	11.6 By 2030, reduce the adverse per capita environmental impact of cities, including by paying special attention to air quality and municipal and other waste management Resources		Spotlight on: Creating our Circular Economy, p26
	11.7 By 2030, provide universal access to safe, inclusive and accessible, green and public spaces, in particular for women and children, older persons and persons with disabilities	Transforming Lives, Rethinking	Tilal Al Ghaf, p10
	11.a Support positive economic, social and environmental links between urban, peri-urban and rural areas by strengthening national and regional development planning	Resources, Empowering our People	ntat At Onal, pro
	11.c Support least developed countries, including through financial and technical assistance, in building sustainable and resilient buildings utilizing local materials	Rethinking Resources	Building Resilience across our Business, p21
12 RESPONSIBLE CONSUMPTION AND PRODUCTION	12.2 By 2030, achieve the sustainable management and efficient use of natural resources		Spotlight on: Creating our Circular Economy, p26
CO	12.3 By 2030, halve per capita global food waste at the retail and consumer levels and reduce food losses along production and supply chains, including post-harvest losses	-	Partnership with the Caucasus Bears Farm, p27
	12.4 By 2020, achieve the environmentally sound management of chemicals and all wastes throughout their life cycle, in accordance with agreed international frameworks, and significantly reduce their release to air, water and soil in order to minimize their adverse impacts on human health and the environment	Rethinking Resources	Building Resilience across our Business, p21
	12.5 By 2030, substantially reduce waste generation through prevention, reduction, recycling and reuse	-	Spotlight on: Creating our Circular Economy, p26

SDG Target



12.7 Promote public procurement practices that are sustainal in accordance with national policies and priorities

12.8 By 2030, ensure that people everywhere have the relevant and awareness for sustainable development and lifestyles in with nature

12.a Support developing countries to strengthen their scientif technological capacity to move towards more sustainable pat of consumption and production



13.1 Strengthen resilience and adaptive capacity to climate-read natural disasters in all countries

13.2 Integrate climate change measures into national policies and planning

13.3 Improve education, awareness-raising and human and ir capacity on climate change mitigation, adaptation, impact red early warning

13.a Implement the commitment undertaken by developed-co parties to the United Nations Framework Convention on Clima to a goal of mobilizing jointly \$100 billion annually by 2020 from to address the needs of developing countries in the context of mitigation actions and transparency on implementation and fu operationalize the Green Climate Fund through its capitalizati as possible



15.5 Take urgent and significant action to reduce the degradat habitats, halt the loss of biodiversity and, by 2020, protect and extinction of threatened species



17.16 Enhance the global partnership for sustainable developin complemented by multi-stakeholder partnerships that mobilin knowledge, expertise, technology and financial resources, to the achievement of the sustainable development goals in all c in particular developing countries

17.17 Encourage and promote effective public, public-private society partnerships, building on the experience and resourci of partnerships

17.19 By 2030, build on existing initiatives to develop measurer of progress on sustainable development that complement gro product, and support statistical capacity-building in developin

		Comparison Evidence	
	Focus Area	Supporting Evidence	0
nal companies, / information	Transforming Lives	Spotlight on: Embedding Responsible Procurement across	OVERVIEW
able,		the Business, p18	
ant information n harmony	Empowering our People	Sustainability Training for MAFers, p30	DARE TODAY, CHANGE TOMORROW
ific and atterns		Majid Al Futtaim has roof top PVs installed on its malls, Carrefour stores and communities which generate renewable energy	_
related hazards		Building Resilience across our	LIVES
es, strategies	-	Business, p21	AING
institutional eduction and	Rethinking		RETHINKING RESOURCES
country nate Change om all sources of meaningful fully	Resources	Majid Al Futtaim listed the world's first benchmark corporate Green Sukuk to finance existing and future green projects	ING EMPOWERING CES OUR PEOPLE
ation as soon			EOPLE
ation of natural ad prevent the	Rethinking Resources	For every new development, an ecologist assesses the status of animals and plants. Majid Al Futtaim's Pre- Acquisition Sustainability Policy addresses risks relating to biodiversity impact	GOVERNANCE
pment, ilize and share o support countries,	Transforming Lives, Rethinking Resources,	Majid Al Futtaim works with the Red Crescent across the majority of its operating companies and is part of public-private partnerships, for example,	LOOKING TO THE FUTURE
e and civil cing strategies	Empowering our People	as a member of the People of Determination Advsory Panel and the Business for Wellbeing Council	
rements ross domestic ing countries	Transforming Lives	Start-ups and SME's, p16	PERFORMANCE

UNITED NATIONS GLOBAL COMPACT COMMUNICATION ON PROGRESS

The Ten Principles of the UN Global Compact	Commitment	Reference in the Sustainability Report and Organisation's Documents	SDGs						
	Human I	Rights							
Principle 1: Businesses should support and respect the protection of internationally proclaimed	We promote the advancement of international human rights by ensuring accommodation and employment conditions for all employees	Fostering a workplace for all, p29 Health, safety and human rights, p31 Spotlight on: Embedding responsible	1 ¹⁰ 第2年年年 4 modys 1 modys 5 mo						
human rights	- and direct (tier 1) suppliers comply with the	procurement across the business, p18	Di 🥑						
Principle 2: Businesses should make sure that they are not complicit in human rights abuses	International Labour Organisation's (ILO) eight core conventions	Policies and procedures: Employment Conditions Policy, Code of Conduct, Responsible Procurement Policy, Occupational Health and Safety, Corporate Compliance							
	Labo	ur							
Principle 3: Businesses should uphold the freedom of association and the effective recognition of the right to collective bargaining	We operate in full compliance with all national ar where we are present	We operate in full compliance with all national and regional legislation in the countries							
Principle 4: Businesses should uphold the elimination of all forms of forced and compulsory labour Principle 5: Businesses should uphold the effective abolition of child labour Principle 6:	We are committed to protecting the rights of our employees, upholding best practice labour standards, and managing and improving labour conditions throughout our supply chain. We do not tolerate discrimination of any kind. We promote a values-led, diverse, and inclusive culture where colleagues are treated fairly and	Empowering our people, p28-33 Spotlight on: Embedding responsible procurement across the business, p18 Policies and procedures: Employment Conditions Policy, Code of Conduct, Responsible Procurement Policy, Diversity and	5 there 5 t						

Inclusion Policy, Corporate Compliance

Principle 6:

Businesses should uphold the elimination of discrimination in respect to employment and occupation

with respect

MAJID AL FUTTAIM SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2020

Reference in the Sustainability Report and Organisation's Documents SDGs Iment	OVERVIEW
<text><text><text><text></text></text></text></text>	DARE TODAY, TRANSFORMING RETHINKING CHANGE LIVES RESOURCES TOMORROW LIVES RESOURCES
ruption	
Corporate compliance Health, safety and human rights, p31 Governance, p34 Policies and Procedures: Code of Conduct, Supplier Code of Conduct, Responsible Procurement Policy, Gifts, Hospitality, Entertainment Policy, Conflict of Interest Policy	EMPOWERING OUR PEOPLE GOVERNANCE
	LOOKING TO THE FUTURE

The Ten Principles of the UN Global

Commitment

We aim to reduce our negative impact and make a positive contribution to the environment

and communities which we develop and

operate. Our pursuit of Net Positive water

and carbon by 2040 and circular economy

principles, supports us in decoupling our

and environmental degradation. In addition,

to enhance the long-term resilience of our

business, we are reporting in line with the

We comply with the highest standards and

laws governing anti-bribery and corruption.

UK's Anti-Bribery Act and the Combined Code

We have adopted the principles of the

on Corporate Governance

recommendations of the TCFD

growth from the use of finite, natural resources

Environ

Anti-corr

Compact

Principle 7: Businesses should support a precautionary approach to environmental

challenges

Principle 8:

Businesses should

to promote greater

Businesses should

environmental

responsibility

Principle 9:

encourage the development and diffusion of environmentally friendly technologies

Principle 10: Businesses should work against

corruption in all its

extortion and bribery

forms, including

undertake initiatives

GLOBAL REPORTING INITIATIVE (GRI)

As part of our commitment to follow international best practice and report on our sustainability performance in a balanced and transparent manner, this report references the following GRI Universal and Topic-Specific Standards (2016 edition).

STAKEHOLDER INCLUSIVENESS

• In the development of this report we took steps to engage, consult and take into consideration our stakeholders' interests (p9)

SUSTAINABILITY CONTEXT

- It's important to ensure we align our approach with local needs and international trends
- Detail on our sustainability approach, vision and material impacts is provided in the 'Dare Today, Change Tomorrow' Strategy section (p8), A message from our Chief Executive Officer (p1) and Chief Sustainability Officer (p6) sections of this report
- Our business activities, impacts and sustainability risks and opportunities can be found on p8 of our 2020 Sustainability Report (available online). www.majidalfuttaim.com/en/who-we-are/sustainability-and-impact/ sustainability
- Our environmental achievements are detailed in our Rethinking Resources section on p20-27. An environmental data pack reporting our performance in line with the EPRA (European Public Real Estate Association) Sustainability Best Practice Reporting Guidelines can be downloaded from our website. http://maf.am/EPRA2020

MATERIALITY

• Our most recent full materiality review was conducted in 2017 during the development of our Company-wide strategy. This involved a series of materiality tests (based on GRI and AA1000 guidelines) including a review of our existing strategy, assessment of internal and external stakeholder perspectives, a country risk review (including legislation), peer review and leadership and innovation benchmark. As a result, we identified the following issues to be a high priority for our business: local economic development, innovation, customer experience, net positive carbon, net positive water, waste and circular economy, attracting and retaining talent, healthy workplaces, training and development, human rights and employment conditions. Eleven other issues were also identified as material to at least one of our Operating Companies and will be managed through Operating Company action plans and reported on as required to meet stakeholder expectations

COMPLETENESS & BOUNDARY SETTING

- The scope of our reporting covers all existing assets under our operational control. The environmental performance of some of our construction sites is included in the scope of this sustainability report. Any areas where we do not have complete data to report against are indicated within the report
- Our reporting focuses on those issues that we consider most material to the running of our business. Additional information on our business and its financial performance is provided in our Consolidated Financial Statements 2020 which are available on our website. https://www.majidalfuttaim.com/-/ media/feature/mafcorporate/about/policy/maf-holding-consolidatedfinancial-statements---31-december-2020.pdf

BALANCE & CLARITY

- We have a clear strategy which supports our goal to be recognised internationally as a sustainability leader. Our approach is structured around three focus areas. See p8 for full details
- Our Sustainability Report is available both in hard copy and online. We also have a sustainability section on our website
- Content is designed to be easily navigable to the reader and avoids complex technical jargon and excessive detail
- In order to be transparent, we disclose both negative and positive aspects and results of our performance

COMPARABILITY

- The historical performance data which is used in this report spans five years and covers the environmental, economic and social aspects of our sustainability strategy
- We participate in the Global Real Estate Sustainability Benchmark (GRESB) through which we, and our stakeholders, are able to better understand our performance in comparison with that of our peers. We provide a separate report on environmental data in line with the EPRA Sustainability Best Practice Recommendations (sBPR). This can be downloaded from our website. http://maf.am/EPRA2020
- All our new developments are committed to achieving Leadership in Energy & Environmental Design (LEED) Gold or equivalent
- Our report is aligned with the 2016 GRI Standards outlined in our GRI Context Index, including the principles for defining report quality and content
- Due to improvements in data collection and verification processes, some re-statements of previous years' environmental data have been included in this report to take in to account these improvements. Full explanations of these adjustments are provided in data qualification notes in the EPRA sBPR tables provided on our website. http://maf.am/EPRA2020

RELIABILITY & ACCURACY

- Validation of the majority of the information within our Sustainability Report is performed by our sustainability consultants, JLL
- Guidance was provided by JLL on preparing this report in line with the GRI's principles for report quality and content, and the following disclosures set out in this index
- Data assumptions and calculations are disclosed in data qualifying notes in the EPRA sBPR tables on our website. http://maf.am/EPRA2020

TIMELINESS

• The information presented in this Sustainability Report was developed to reflect our performance from 1 January to 31 December 2020. Our Consolidated Financial Statements cover the same period. The sustainability reporting schedule is aligned with the annual financial reporting schedule

102-1	Question	Answer																					
	Name of organisation	Majid Al Fut	taim																				
102-2	Activities, brands, products and services	About our co	About our company, inside cover page																				
102-3	Location of headquarters	Majid Al Fut Tower 1, 10" City Centre I PO Box 9110 Dubai, Unite	h Floor, Deira Co 10																				
102-4	Location of operations	About our C See also our	1 2					.com															
102-5	Ownership and legal form	For more inf	e also our website: www.majidalfuttaim.com jid Al Futtaim owned by Mr Majid Al Futtaim, who founded the Company in 1992. r more information about the nature of ownership of Majid Al Futtaim – Holding assets, please see our website: w.majidalfuttaim.com																				
102-6	Markets served		out our Company, inside cover page e also our website: www.majidalfuttaim.com																				
102-7	Scale of the organisation	See also our https://www	About our Company, inside cover page See also our Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ending 31 December https://www.majidalfuttaim.com/-/media/feature/mafcorporate/about/policy/maf-holding-consolidated-financial-statements 81-december-2020.pdf																				
102-8	Information on employees and other workers	A significant We also use Security Landscap Window c Mall cons Design te Operators Cleaning Recycling 3rd party Agents, s Creative A Training Data mar Travel ag Promotio	contrac or maint leaning struction ams s of our l in our of operati verifiers ustainab Agencies hagemer encies ns and r mbers ir extracte	tors f f enance (mall (and hotels ffices onal v who a s (bra nedia nedia d fror	ior: ce s, offic all sub s waste (are app consult nding/p tem ed in th m Majio	es) o con o con o conte ants, printi	tracto ur ass ed din etc. ng/ph port a	ors) sets) notogra are calo m's HR	y Maj aphy) culat ? port	iid Al F ed onl tal, the	Futtain	m i.e. direct re no a	CXA empl	oyees	s and t	hus d e mac	o not i Je.	include		ractor	S.		
		-	Holding, Ti							roperties		0.0.0			Retail		- ar ia ci	011 01 0		C & Leisur	e		A
							Total	Femal		Mal		Total	Fem	ale	Ma	le	Total	Fema	ale	Mal	e	Total	Sta
		Gender	Femal	e	Male																		
		Worker origin	Migrant L	ocal M	ligrant Lo		,			Migrant			-		Migrant			3		Migrant			To
		Worker origin MENA	Migrant L 97	.ocal M 30	ligrant L o	62	340	313	130	455	291	1189	3872	2698	12850	12541		965	349	1737	885	3936	те 37
		Worker origin MENA Africa	Migrant L 97	.ocal M 30	figrant Lo 151 O	62 0	340 0	313 0	130 0	455 0	291 0	1189 0	3872 1	2698 649	12850 37	12541 1147	1834	965 0	349 0	1737 0	885 0	0	т 33
		Worker origin MENA Africa Central Asia	Migrant L 97 0 0	.ocal M 30 0	figrant Lo 151 0 0	62 0 0	340 0 0	313 0 0	130 0 0	455 0 0	291 0 0	1189 0 0	3872 1 4	2698 649 1539	12850 37 14	12541 1147 946	1834 2503	965 0 0	349 0 0	1737 0 0	885 0 0	0	1 37 1 2
		Worker origin MENA Africa Central Asia Southern & South Eastern Asia	Migrant L 97 0 0 0	.ocal M 30 0 0	ligrant Ligrant 151	62 0 0	340 0 0	313 0 0	130 0 0	455 0 0	291 0 0	1189 0 0	3872 1 4 0	2698 649 1539 138	12850 37 14 6	12541 1147 946 1335	1834 2503 1479	965 0 0	349 0 0	1737 0 0	885 0 0	0 0	1 37 1 2
		Worker origin MENA Africa Central Asia Southern &	Migrant L 97 0 0	.ocal M 30 0	figrant Lo 151 0 0	62 0 0	340 0 0	313 0 0	130 0 0	455 0 0	291 0 0	1189 0 0	3872 1 4	2698 649 1539	12850 37 14	12541 1147 946	1834 2503	965 0 0	349 0 0	1737 0 0	885 0 0	0	то 37 1

102-9 Supply chain Within Majid Al Futtaim, procurement varies greatly across our portfolio of properties and construction sites due to the wide variety of goods and services that we provide. Our engagement is with our tier 1 suppliers, and our Responsible Procurement Policy covers their activity with the majority of our suppliers being based out of the UAE. The services / goods provided by our tier 1 suppliers include but are not limited to:

- Facilities management/repairs and maintenance
- Property management supply of goods/consumables Housekeeping, cleaning and security
- General consultancy
- Construction contractors and materials • Marketing and advertising
- Corporate publications/gifts
- Promotions & media
- IT maintenance and licenses
- Training, seminars and conferences
- Travel management
 - IT solutions and management systems

MAJID AL FUTTAIM SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2020

	OVERVIEW
ounded the Company in 1992. of Majid Al Futtaim – Holding assets, please see our website:	DARE TODAY, CHANGE TOMORROW
he year ending 31 December fcorporate/about/policy/maf-holding-consolidated-financial-statements on sites and assets is delivered by contractors.	TRANSFORMING LIVES
	RETHINKING RESOURCES
jid Al Futtaim i.e. CXA	EMPOWERING OUR PEOPLE

LOOKING TO THE FUTURE

MAJID AL FUTTAIM SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2020

GRI Standard	Question	Answer
102-10	Significant changes to the organisation and its supply chain	In 2020, our Ventures Operating Company divided into Leisure, Entertainment and Cinemas (LEC) and Lifestyle businesses as independent Operating Companies. In line with the new structure, the Legal team and Real Estate & Delivery teams have moved into LEC to support both operating companies (p4). The Procurement Shared Services team also relocated from the Shopping Malls business unit to Majid Al Futtaim – Properties Corporate team. This change was to maximise supplier savings across all BUs and Functions and enable alignment to procurement planning, strategy, budget, sourcing execution and reporting. Finally, in the year we established the Global Business Solutions (GBS) unit which will consolidate and standardise how support is provided to the OpCos and Business Units going forward. The unit will ensure service excellence, speed and work to eliminate duplication and inefficiencies at scale. Additional information about our Company, can be found on the inside cover page See also our Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ending 31 December 2020: https://www.majidalfuttaim. com/-/media/feature/mafcorporate/about/policy/maf-holding-consolidated-financial-statements31- december-2020.pdf
102-11	Precautionary Principle or approach	Majid Al Futtaim is not yet in a position in the Middle Eastern market to apply fully the precautionary principle to its business activities. However, our Pre-Acquisition Policy does seek to identify major environmental risks from the acquisition of new land or new buildings. Our recently launched Climate risk framework provides a tool for employees, highlighting the climate risks at a new asset in countries of our operation. In addition, Majid Al Futtaim's Sustainable Building Policy provides guidelines on what all the new assets in our operation should comply with as a pre-requisite which aims at eliminating the environmental as well as societal risks and internal financial risks. Finally, our Sustainability Implementation Plans also seek to improve the environmental risk management and performance of our development pipeline with risk management and mitigation strategies being part of our standards which are applied through a thorough regime of controls. We use a standard NDA with all our suppliers to help mitigate against any further problems
102-12	External initiatives	Majid Al Futtaim is proud to be part of UNGC, GRI, WorldGBC Net Zero Commitment, ILO, LEED/BREEAM/Estidama, ILFI (for TAG), Zero Waste, Green Building Councils and the SDGs Additional information on some of our initiatives can be found in this report, p8-9
102-13	Membership of associations	Majid Al Futtaim are members of a wide variety of associations and advocacy organisations. These include: • World Economic Forum • World Business Council for Sustainable Development • World GBC and regional GBC in our business locations • UN Global Compact • Dubai Chamber • DGNB • Consumer Goods Forum • Project Circle • GRESB • Emirates Diving Association • Clean Energy Business Council • Sustainalytics • Cambridge Institute for Sustainability Leadership • Ellen MacArthur Foundation
102-14	Statement from senior decision maker	A message from our Chief Executive Officer, A message from our Chief Sustainability Officer and Operating Company Chief Executive Officer messages, p1,4-6
102-15	Key impacts, risks, and opportunities	Dare Today, Change Tomorrow Strategy and Our Focus Areas and Material Issues, p8
102-16	Values, principles, standards and our norms of behaviour	Our vision and values are available on our website: https://www.majidalfuttaim.com/en/who-we-are#vision-values Information on our Standards and norms of behaviour can be found on p29 Additionally, we are signatories of the United Nations Global Compact and submit an annual Communication on Progress (CoP) to demonstrate our adherence to the ten principles of the compact. Our most recent CoP can be found on p54 of this report
102-18	Governance Structure	Our Business structure and governance can be found on our website: https://www.majidalfuttaim.com/en/ who-we-are/executive-leadership Our sustainability governance structure can be found in the Embedding our strategic approach section of this report, p8-9 and/or on our website: https://www.majidalfuttaim.com/en/who-we-are/corporate-compliance
102-32	Highest governance body's role in sustainability reporting	Ibrahim Al-Zu'bi, Chief Sustainability Officer feeds into the board and formally reviews and approves the sustainability report for the business
102-40	List of stakeholder groups	Majid Al Futtaim employees, tenants, customers, suppliers, contractors, regional and global peers, communities, NGOs, charities and Governments
102-41	Collective bargaining agreements	GCC countries do not permit unions but in countries where unions are permitted, such as Lebanon or Egypt, Majid Al Futtaim does not prohibit employees from joining these unions in accordance with the country's Laws and regulations
102-42	ldentifying and selecting stakeholders	Our key stakeholders were identified as part of our materiality review in 2010. They were reviewed again in 2013 and then in 2017 as part of our Group strategy review. In 2020, we underwent a stakeholder mapping exercise to identify any new stakeholder relationships. As a result we identified a variety of stakeholders across our different business units including: our employees across all Operating Companies within Majid Al Futtaim, internal departments, residents, tenants, customers, consultants, contractors, operators, Carrefour B2B customers, suppliers, regional and global peers, communities, NGOs, charities, last mile providers, landlords, brands, partnerships, investors and Governments. It is these stakeholders with whom we continue to prioritise engagement with

GRI Standard	Question	Answer
102-43	Approach to stakeholder engagement	Stakeholder engagement and frequency of For any new development, stakeholder id communities often being the main stakeh lays out how the business should engage on a yearly basis. Tier 1 suppliers are engaged with on a re engagement conducted in the past year. and expectations of our suppliers. Majid J Customers play a vital role for our busine to campaigns and consultations. For many of our other stakeholders, our For more information on our stakeholder
102-44	Key topics and concerns raised	Stakeholders and key topics p9
102-45	Entities included in the consolidated financial statements	About this report, inside cover page Consolidated Financial Statements for th feature/mafcorporate/about/policy/maf-t
102-46	Defining report content and topic boundaries	About this report, inside cover page The Dare Today, Change Tomorrow Strateg Principles for Defining Report Content an
102-47	List of the material topics	The Dare Today, Change Tomorrow Strateg
102-48	Restatements of information	About this report, inside cover page. The Due to improvements in data collection a Therefore some restatements of previous account these improvements. Full explan EPRA tables included within this report a
102-49	Changes in reporting	No changes in reporting for 2020
102-50	Reporting period	About this report, inside cover page
102-51	Date of most recent report	2020 Majid Al Futtaim Sustainability Repo strategy reporting.
102-52	Reporting cycle	Annual
102-53	Contact point for questions regarding the report	sustainability@maf.ae
102-54	Claims of reporting in accordance with the GRI Standards	Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) Content I
102-55	GRI content index	This index
102-56	External assurance	We do not currently have full external ass Environmental Assurance Statement on p
Material	Topics	
Economi	c Topics	
103	Management approach for economic impacts	Infrastructure investments and their imported the Infrastructure investments and their imported to the transforming Lives pillar. You can read
Indirect E	Economic Impacts	
203-1	Infrastructure investments and services supported	Additional Infrastructure p16 During the reporting period of 2020, five of benefit the local community. Four of thes Infrastructure included an urban farm, ro place in Egypt and saw the development of The 5 projects cost over 60 million AED All infrastructure was developed to help ef in from project inception
	nental Topics	
103	Management approach for: • Energy • Water • GHG Emissions • Effluents and Waste	The management approach we take for d Our Net Positive Approach can be found o Our circular economy strategy can be fou Building resilience across our business a be found on p21 All of our material issues mapping to SDI Our target mapping which demonstrates

MAJID AL FUTTAIM SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2020

y differs depending on which stakeholders Majid Al Futtaim is engaging with. identification is undertaken with residents, charities, government and eholders identified in the process. Our community engagement charter then ge with the groups identified including conducting a socio economic survey

regularly basis, with training on responsible procurement questionnaire : Our Responsible Procurement Policy also lays out the future engagement d Al Futtaim hopes to work with suppliers to ensure standards are met. ness, with engagement being constant. This varies from surveys,

r engagement is project and time dependent. er engagement, please see p9

the year ending 31 December 2020: https://www.majidalfuttaim.com/-/media/ -holding-consolidated-financial-statements---31-december-2020.pdf

egy and Our Focus Areas and Material Issues, p8 and Report Quality, p56

egy and Our Focus Areas and Material Issues, p8-9,12-13

e 2020 Performance Data Summary (EPRA Pack) is available online. and verification processes several data points have been updated since 2019. us year's environmental data have been included in this report to take into anations of these adjustments are provided in data qualification notes in the and online.

port, published in June 2020. This was the second year of the Company-Wide

t Index, p56

ssurance for our sustainability reporting but you can find our n p40 of this report

pact on the communities we serve are highly material to us and fall under ead more about this topic on p16

e development projects had significant infrastructure investments which will ese projects were located in the UAE at our Al Zahia development. roads, pedestrian bridge and clubhouse for residents. Our final project took it of Almaza Recruitment & Training Centre

p enhance the local communities' life and the communities were engaged

different elements of our environmental strategy: d on p24-25 ound on p26-27 and the policies which govern our environment performance can

DGs can be found on p12-13 is our material issues alignment to SDGs p49-53 OVERVIEW

DARE TODAY, CHANGE TOMORROW



т	ਸ
ñ	Ē
ö	Ξ.
\subseteq	Z
2	\geq
ШS	∠G

EMPOWERING OUR PEOPLE

GOVERNANCE

LOOKING TO THE FUTURE

PERFORMANCE

GRI Standard	Question	Answer
Energy		
302-1	Energy consumption within the organisation	Full EPRA sBPR tables on our website Omission: no steam and heating consumption data is available and no electricity, heating, cooling or steam is sold
302-3	Energy intensity	Full EPRA sBPR tables on our website
302-4	Reduction of energy consumption	Full EPRA sBPR tables on our website
Water		
303-3	Water withdrawal	Majid AL Futtaim only records data for produced water and third party water. There is no information on any water source listed due to this being against local regulations
303-5	Water consumption	Full EPRA sBPR tables on our website Omission: water consumption data is available as a total, but is not broken down for areas where there is water stress and change in water storage is not recorded
Emission	IS	
305-1	Direct (Scope 1) GHG emissions	Full EPRA sBPR tables on our website
305-2	Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG emissions	Full EPRA sBPR tables on our website
305-3	Other indirect (Scope 3) GHG emissions	Full EPRA sBPR tables on our website
305-4	GHG Emissions intensity	Full EPRA sBPR tables on our website Omission: The GHG data in the table is only shown for Majid Al Futtaim – Properties
305-5	Reduction of GHG emissions	Full EPRA sBPR tables on our website Data available from baseline year
Effluents	and waste	
306-2	Management of significant waste-related impacts	Improving waste management and progressing towards a circular economy were identified as important sustainability issues in the strategy review that Majid Al Futtaim conducted in 2017 alongside other environmental issues. Due to the nature of our business, environmental impacts are material across the design, construction and operation of our assets. The business uses four waste collection contractors who collect the waste for offsite segregation and recycling at the majority of sites. Waste produced onsite is not reused internally at this point. For construction waste, additional contracts with waste contractors are in place along with construction waste management plans for all construction sites. The waste management plan is used to ensure that waste contractors come and collect different sources of the waste data on recycling and further waste segregation breakdown is provided directly from the waste collection contractors. This data is then monitored internally on a quarterly basis for reporting purposes. Our Sustainability, Energy Management and Green Building Policies can be downloaded from our website For more information on our Circular Economy Strategy see p26-27
306-3	Waste generated	Full EPRA sBPR tables on our website Omission: Data is only available for Majid Al Futtaim – Properties Operating Company
306-4	Waste diverted from disposal	Full EPRA sBPR tables on our website Omission: Data is only available for Majid Al Futtaim – Properties Operating Company
306-5	Waste directed to disposal	Full EPRA sBPR tables on our website Omission: Data is only available for Majid Al Futtaim – Properties Operating Company
Environn	nental Compliance	
307-1	Non- compliance with environmental laws and regulations	At Majid Al Futtaim there has not been any forms of non compliance as the business always goes above and beyond the local requirements and regulations. Therefore we do not have any significant fines or sanctions to disclose
Supplier	Environmental As	sessments
308-1	New suppliers that were screened using	Currently, we do not track the percentage of suppliers that are screened due to requiring all new suppliers to have an implementation plan to demonstrate their progress In addition, in 2020 we carried out a presentation to our suppliers to ensure they understand what our Sustainable Procurement

screened using	In addition, in 2020 we carried out a presentation to our suppliers to ensure they understand what our Sustainable Procurement
environmental	Strategy is and the requirements expected of them. We then rolled out a survey to better understand where they are and if they
criteria	align with our requirements and to identify possible knowledge gaps. These results were analysed and gaps identified

Standard	Question	Answer																
Social To	pics																	
103	Management approach for: • Occupational Health and Safety • Suppler Assessment for Labour Practices	Best practice I material to Ma Majid Al Futtai Policy can be e An internal au during each qu then adjusted	ijid Al Fu m has ir downloa dit is un uarter. A	ittaim. n place ded fro dertake t year e	Labour policies m our v en by JL end the	practic s, targe website: L on a o final au	es affec ts and K www.m quarterl dit is in	t our dii PIs to e ajidalfu y basis cluded i	rect em insure t ittaim.c for Maji n the ar	ployees hat we f om/en/v d Al Fut nnual re	and ou follow a who-we ttaim – eport. B	r contra best pr -are/su Propert ased on	actors actice stainat ies. The	and sub approac pility-an e result	-contra ch. Our L d-impac s are sh	ctors' si _abour \$ ct/susta ared int	taff. Standa inabilit ernally	ty y
Employn	nent																	
401-1	New employee hires		Holding, T	rust, Chari	ty & Preside	ent's Office		Prope	erties	%		Ret	ail	%		LEC & Li	festyle	
	and employee turnover	JOINERS	Female	Male	Total	70 Turnover	Female	Male	Total	Turnover	Female	Male	Total	Turnover	Female	Male	Total	т
	turnover	MENA	18	64	82	24%	48	53	101	8%	1414	4659	6073	19%	280	572	852	
		Africa	0	0			0	0	0		146	348	494	27%	0	0	0	
		Central Asia Southern and South	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		800	789	1589	63%	0	0	0	
		Eastern Asia	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		70	543	613	41%	0	0	0	
		Eastern Asia	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		7	1	8	32%	0	0	0	
		Europe	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		3	4	7	88%	0	0	0	
		Overall Sum:	18	64	82	24%	48	53	101	8%	2440	6344	8784	23%	280	572	852	
								-										
		LEAVERS	Holding, T Female	rust, Charit Male	ty & Preside Total	ent's Office %	Female	Prope	Total	%	Female	Ret Male	ail Total	%	Female	LEC & Li Male	festyle Grand	
						Turnover				Turnover				Turnover			Total	Т
		MENA Africa	14	28	42		34	81	115	10%	1326	4881	6207	19%	583	1156	1739	
		Central Asia	0	0	0		0	0	0		55	107 776	162	9% 54%	0	0	0	
		Southern and South	0	0	0		0	0	0		69	551			0	0		
		Eastern Asia											620	42%			0	
		Eastern Asia Europe	0	0			0	0	0		3	2	2	8% 63%	0	0	0	
		Overall Sum:	14	28	42		34	81	115	10%	2039	6318	8357	22%	583	1156	1739	
401-2	Benefits provided to full-time employees that are not provided to temporary or part- time employees	Majid Al Futtai Medical and treatment/p Group Life a All employe Pensions ar Additional b More informat	d Life Ins prescript and Pers res are e nd bonus penefits a	surance ion from sonal A ntitled ses are also inc	e for ful m selec ccident to annu also pr clude so	l time e cted priv Insurar Jal leave ovided f chooling	mployee vate hos nce from e, sick le for emp assista	es and t pitals, c n emplo eave and loyees nce and	heir elig clinics a yees sta d mater d relatio	gible de nd gove art date nity leav	ernment . Disabi ve	hospita lity bene	als fron efits ar	n emplo e also c	overed v	art date		
Occupati	onal Health and Saf	ety																[
403-1	Occupational health and safety management system	Majid Al Futtai health and saf working enviro contractors, vi The Company Commits to Commits to Commits to guests, con Commits to Commits to Subjects Of	ety (OH8 onment l sitors ar s Occup provide organisa comply develop establis tractors ensure	(S) as a by elimination of the ational an envition with ap and co sh and co sh and co that ad	an integ inating rs who Health ironme oplicablo ontinua drive a yone al equate	ral com hazards may be and Sal nt wher le legal lly impr strategy ffected b resource	apponent s, mitiga affected fety Poli re work- and othe ove the r and cu oy the bucces are	of a suc ting hea d by our cy state related er appli organis lture th usiness provide	ccessful alth and activitie s that N health cable O ation's I at prom	busine safety as lajid Al and safe H&S re- nealth, s otes the et the re	ss. We risks, a Futtaim ety risk quirem safety a e prever equirem	aim to p nd raisin s are ap ents and nd envin ntion of nents of	provide ng awa propria d best p ronmer injury a the pol	and ma reness ately mi practice ntal man and ill h licy	intain a among e tigated a s nageme ealth to	safe an employe and mar nt syste all emp	d healt ees, naged m loyees	thy

MAJID AL FUTTAIM SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2020

OVERVIEW





RETHINKING RESOURCES

EMPOWERING OUR PEOPLE

GOVERNANCE

LOOKING TO THE FUTURE

PERFORM ANCE

Answer

GRI Standard Question

403-9 Work- For a

related injuries

For all employees the main types of injury included (but were not limited to) injuries to the hand, injuries to the feet, and burns from incorrect use of equipment

Rates were based on 1,000,000 hours worked

					Emplo	oyees				
Gender	Absentee Rate	Number of minor injuries	Minor Injury Rate	Number of major injuries	Major Injury Rate	Total number of injuries	Overall Injury Rate	Work-related fatalities	Fatality Injury Rate	Total Hours Worked
Retail	0.07%	1 191	23.15	94	1.83	1 285	24.98	-	-	51 440 288
Properties	-	344	13.21	2	0.08	346	13.29	1	0.04	26 043 286
LEC & Lifestyle	0.01%	29	3.21	-	-	29	3.21	-	-	9 037 440
Holding	0.40%	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-

		Workers													
Gender	Number of minor injuries	Minor Injury Rate	Number of major injuries	Major Injury Rate	Total number of injuries	Overall Injury Rate	Work-related fatalities	Fatality Injury Rate	Total Hours Worked						
Retail	-	-	-	-	785	-	-	-	-						
Properties	18	14	1	0.78	19	14.78	1	29	1 285 497						
LEC & Lifestyle	3	0.76	-	-	3	0.76	-	-	3 965 760						
Holding	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-						

	g and Education																	
404-1	Average hours of training per year per employee		Reta	ail Average	l Average Training Hours		Properties Average Training Hours				LEC & Lifestyle Average Training Hours				Holding Average Training Hours			
			Number of non-managers		Number of Managers		Number of Numb non-managers		Number of	Managers	Number of non-managers		Number of Managers		Number of non-managers		Number of Managers	
			Female 11.85	Male 15.95	Female	Male 18.75	Female 2.27	Male 1 72	Female 5.93	Male 4 75	Female	Male 12.62	Female	Male 15.08	Female	Male 6.32	Female 6.32	Male 5.8
			11.83	10.70	14.40	18.75	2.27	1.72	0.73	4./0	11.61	12.62	11.11	13.08	10.47	0.3Z	0.32	5.0
	upgrading employee skills and transition	• 5 ma • Scha		r Schoo at morr	ol of Analy nents	ytics an	s were pr nd Techno		o Majid .	Al Futta	aim Emp	loyees:						
	assistance programs																	
404-3							Ind	lividuals who	received a p	performance	e and career d	evelopment	review in 2020	D				
404-3	programs Employees receiving regular			Re	tail		Ind	lividuals who Proper	-	performance	e and career d	evelopment LEC & L		D		Hol	ding	
404-3	programs Employees		(Non-mai		tail (Mana	iger)	Ind (Non-mai	Proper	-		e and career d (Non-ma	LEC & L			(Non-ma		ding (Mana	ger)
404-3	programs Employees receiving regular performance and career development		(Non-mai Female			iger) Male		Proper	rties			LEC & L	ifestyle		(Non-ma Female		-	ger) Male
404-3	programs Employees receiving regular performance and career	Employees		nager)	(Mana		(Non-ma	Proper nager)	rties (Mana	ager)	(Non-ma	LEC & L anager)	ifestyle (Mana	ger)		anager)	(Mana	
	programs Employees receiving regular performance and career development		Female	nager) Male	(Mana Female	Male	(Non-mai Female	Proper nager) Male	rties (Mana Female	iger) Male	(Non-ma Female	LEC & L anager) Male	ifestyle (Mana Female	ger) Male	Female	anager) Male	(Mana Female	Male
Diversit	programs Employees receiving regular performance and career development reviews y and Equal Opporto Diversity of		Female	nager) Male	(Mana Female	Male	(Non-mai Female 341	Proper nager) Male 484	rties (Mana Female 51	nger) Male 162	(Non-ma Female	LEC & L anager) Male 1794	ifestyle (Mana Female 54	ger) Male 162	Female	anager) Male	(Mana Female	Male
Diversit	programs Employees receiving regular performance and career development reviews y and Equal Opport Diversity of governance bodies		Female	nager) Male	(Mana Female 591	Male	(Non-mai Female 341	Proper nager) Male 484	rties (Mana Female 51	nger) Male 162	(Non-ma Female 741	LEC & L anager) Male 1794	ifestyle (Mana Female 54 in each age gr	ger) Male 162	Female	anager) Male 60	(Mana Female	Male
Diversit	programs Employees receiving regular performance and career development reviews y and Equal Opporto Diversity of		Female	nager) Male 21931 Re Age	(Mana Female 591	Male 3630	(Non-mai Female 341	Proper nager) Male 484 ntage of emp	rties (Mana Female 51 ployees who s	nger) Male 162 sit on Govern	(Non-ma Female 741	LEC & L anager) Male 1794 (The board) LEC & L Age	ifestyle (Mana Female 54 in each age gr	ger) Male 162 oup	Female	anager) Male 60	(Mana Female 45 ding	Male 10
Diversit	programs Employees receiving regular performance and career development reviews y and Equal Opport Diversity of governance bodies	unity	Female	nager) Male 21931 Ret	(Mana Female 591 tail	Male 3630 Total	(Non-mai Female 341	Proper nager) Male 484 ntage of empi Proper	(Mana Female 51 Doloyees who s rties 50+	nger) Male 162 sit on Govern Total	(Non-ma Female 741	LEC & L anager) Male 1794 (The board)	ifestyle (Mana- Female 54 in each age gr ifestyle 50+	ger) Male 162 Total	Female	anager) Male 60 Hol	(Mana Female 45 ding 50+	Male 10 Total
	programs Employees receiving regular performance and career development reviews y and Equal Opport Diversity of governance bodies		Female 6596	nager) Male 21931 Re Age	(Mana Female 591	Male 3630	(Non-mai Female 341 Percei under 30	Proper nager) Male 484 ntage of empi Proper Age	rties (Mana Female 51 ployees who s	nger) Male 162 sit on Govern	(Non-ma Female 741 nance bodies under 30	LEC & L anager) Male 1794 (The board) LEC & L Age	ifestyle (Mana Female 54 in each age gr	ger) Male 162 oup	Female 64	anager) Male 60 Hol Age	(Mana Female 45 ding	Male 10

GRI Standard	Question	Answer
Child Lab	our	
408-1	Operations and suppliers at significant risk for incidents of child labour	We understand that our greatest risk of child labour is Employee Conditions Policy and Responsible Procurent the requirements laid out within them. In addition we at to their own suppliers and contractors. Additional checks are made on all contractors and sup and Responsible Procurement Policy are met. Majid Al Futtaim's Employment Conditions Policy addre within the contracts template where child labour is clea The policy can be found: https://www.majidalfuttaim.com
Forced or	r Compulsory Labo	pur
409-1	Operations and suppliers at significant risk for incidents of forced or compulsory labour	Information on Forced or Compulsory labour can be for During 2020, zero cases of forced or compulsory labou Majid Al Futtaim's Employment Conditions Policy addru within the contracts template where forced labour is cl Additionally, checks are made on all contractors and su Conditions Policy are met. The policy can be found: https://www.majidalfuttaim.co
Human R	ights Assessment	
412-1	Operations that have been subject to human rights reviews or impact assessments	100 % of operations undergo Human Rights reviews
412-2	Employee training on human rights policies or procedures	Training on the auditable requirements of the Employn Majid Al Futtaim – Properties, however training only to working from home the majority of the year
412-3	Significant investment agreements and contracts that include human rights clauses or that underwent human rights screening	100% of contracts include human rights clauses and M Majid Al Futtaim's Employee Conditions Policy
Local Cor	nmunities	
413-1	Operations with local community engagement, impact assessments, and development programs	At Majid Al Futtaim, environmental impact assessment infrastructure frameworks which help identify the local The additional infrastructure framework works with loc truly needs. It is through this process alongside regula and progress. For our communities, local stakeholders involved inclu NGOs, etc. For more information on our additional infrastructure v farm p23, and Tilal Al Ghaf p10. Majid Al Futtaim has an council that are engaged with supporting on these issu

MAJID AL FUTTAIM SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2020

s within our supply chain and it is for that reason that we launched our ment Policy which require our tier 1 suppliers and contractors to comply with actively encourage the suppliers and contractors to cascade the policy down	
opliers to ensure the requirements set out in the Employment Conditions	0
resses child labour and can be found on our website, this is also reflected early prohibited. om/en/who-we-are/sustainability-and-impact/sustainability	OVERVIEW
ound on p31 ur in our operations were identified. resses forced labour and can be found on our website, this is also reflected clearly prohibited. suppliers to ensure the requirements set out in the Employment	DARE TODAY, CHANGE TOMORROW
om/en/who-we-are/sustainability-and-impact/sustainability	
	TR/
	LIVES
ment Conditions Policy has been rolled out to relevant staff across	RET
ook place through informative emails during 2020 since employees where	RETHINKING RESOURCES
Majid Al Futtaim requires all our contractors and suppliers to comply with	
	EMPOWERING OUR PEOPLE
	GOVE

ents are carried out at all of our development projects along with additional cal community development programmes required.

local stakeholders and community members to identify what the community llar community updates that the business communicates important issues

lude schools for special needs children, local businesses, community groups

e visit p16, for an example of our community programmes at Al Zahia urban an internal H&S Committee and an external people of determination advisory sues, including any grievances within the community.



MAJID AL FUTTAIM

Majid Al Futtaim Tower 1 City Centre Deira Complex PO BOX 91100 Dubai, United Arab Emirates T +971 4 294 9999 majidalfuttaim.com